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The chemistry is just right here.
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UCP Chemicals
at a Glance
Sustainable growth in volume, revenues and profit
Key Data – Income Statement
in RUB Mio.
12M/2014

12M/2015

12M/2016

12M/2017

12M/2018

Δ (%)

4038,7
850,9
21,1%
304,0
7,5%
32,9
0,8%

4555,7
1074,0
23,6%
427,0
9,4%
103,9
2,3%

4377,7
1082,3
24,7%
502,0
11,5%
130,4
3,0%

4548,0
1169,5
25,7%
565,3
12,4%
224,6
4,9%

5555,0
1309,1
23,6%
604,6
10,9%
272,8
4,9%

22,1%
11,9%
-7,9%
7,0%
-12,0%
21,5%
0,3%

Key Data – Income Statement
in EUR Mio.
12M/2014

12M/2015

12M/2016

12M/2017

12M/2018

Δ (%)

67,2
15,8
23,6%
6,3
9,4%
1,5
2,3%

59,0
14,6
24,7%
6,8
11,5%
1,8
3,0%

69,0
17,7
25,7%
8,6
12,4%
3,4
4,9%

74,9
17,7
23,6%
8,2
10,9%
3,7
4,9%

8,6%
0,0%
-7,9%
-4,4%
-12,0%
8,8%
0,3%

Turnover
Gross Profit
Gross Profit-Margin
EBITDA
EBITDA-Margin (%)
Net Result
Net profit-Margin (%)

Turnover
Gross Profit
Gross Profit-Margin
EBITDA
EBITDA-Margin (%)
Net Result
Net profit-Margin (%)

79,5
16,7
21,1%
6,0
7,5%
0,6
0,8%

Development of EBITDA in RUB100mn and EURmn
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Note:
Inflation rate in Russia 2018 (YOY): 4.3%
Average currency appreciation RUB/EUR 2017 vs. 2018: 12.5%
Currency depreciation between balance sheet dates 31.12.2017 and 31.12.2018: 15.4%
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0

EBITDA as percentage of sales
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10,9%
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Source:
Consolidated financial statements
under IFRS, audited and convenience
translation to Russian Rubles.
Financial performance in 2014
impacted by obligatory fixed assets
revaluation.
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Letter to Shareholders

Dear Shareholders,
Dear Ladies and Gentlemen
In 2018 we kept volume growth strong. The increased capacity utilization counterbalanced the
lower margin level to a certain extent. It was caused by price increases of raw materials and
adverse currency effects. Full-year sales volumes amounted to 105 thousand tons, an increase
by 19% compared to the previous year. Significant investment in new equipment, a focus on
process optimization and the use of state-of-the-art technologies have supported the volume
increases necessary to fulfil the growing demand for our products from domestic and increasingly – from international customers.
The macroeconomic environment in Russia has slightly eased and GDP grew by 2,3%.
Nevertheless, economic development is still hampered by structural inefficiencies, the impact
of global political tensions and the apprehension of a wider scope of international sanctions.
The financial market responded with a devaluation of the Russian Ruble by 12,5% for the
average EUR/RUB rate for 2018 and of 15,4% as for the respective balance sheet dates. This
development is to be seen vis a vis a lowest ever Russian inflation rate of 4,5% in 2018.
Consequently, our income statement and balance sheet contracted in Euro terms but expanded
in Ruble terms.
Thus, it paid off that UCP Group had focused on our locally produced product portfolio at global
quality standards in combination with a package of complementary products and local
customer service. For example, the revenues of insulation and wood resins increased by 34,9%
and 31,6% in 2018, compared to the previous year. However, an increase of raw material
prices at global scale affected the chemical production in Russia as well. Prices of imported
raw materials for the foundry and road chemicals segments increased over proportionally in
2018. As a result, the foundry and road chemical segments of UCP Group, where we are
leaders in our markets - with focus on high quality and premium products- came under margin
pressure. Demand shifted towards cheaper 2nd and 3rd tier producers while compromising on
quality. We have responded by launching new product lines and could already lift margins in
these segments in Q4 2018 with the positive trend continuing in Q1 2019.
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In 2018 UCP Group improved again its financial performance. Despite the adverse currency
effects Euro sales increased by 8,6% to EUR 74,9 million from EUR 69,0 million in the prior
year. In Ruble terms sales increased by 22,1% compared to 2017. The net profit of UCP Group
in 2018 resulted to EUR 3,7 million compared to EUR 3,4 million in the previous year.
Net debt for UCP Chemicals Group has been reduced by 19,3% to EUR 19,1 million. The Debt
/ EBITDA ratio stands now at the level of 2,0.
UCP Group delivered improved financial results in 2017 as well, which allowed us to disburse
EUR 2,0 million of dividends in 2018. We continue our policy of balancing investments into
profitable growth projects with returning dividends to shareholders. Thus, the joint proposal
of the UCP Management and Supervisory Boards is an increase of the dividend per share to
€0,17 in 2019 from €0,14 in 2018 (amounts rounded).
Our growth strategy is built on addressing developments in the industrial markets, the spread
of new technologies and the development of the knowledge of our people. UCP Group’s sound
growth prospects continue to drive through our strong market positions, responsible social and
environmental policies and our transparent relationships with all local, national and
international customers and stakeholders.
In October 2018 PAO Uralchimplast, the main production unit of UCP Group, celebrated its
80th anniversary. It was well received by our team, our customers and stakeholders and by
the local community in Nizhny Tagil. This occasion gave the opportunity to look back on
numerous events and achievements, which became milestone events of a sustained and
successful development of our chemical production plant. It relies on the dedication of our
people, on innovation and future orientation.
On behalf of the entire Management Board, I would like to thank all our employees,
shareholders and stakeholders for their appreciated support, trust and commitment.

Yours sincerely,

Norbert Wieser
CEO
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UCP Chemicals AG

Consolidated Financial Statements
for the Period January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2018
TRANSLATION FROM GERMAN
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UCP Chemicals AG

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as of December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017

Amounts in EUR

Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Interests in at equity consolidated companies
Long term receivables
Deferred tax assets
Total non-current assets

Ref

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

8
9
10
14
35

0
39 874 767
15 233 518
134 846
985 144
56 228 276

2 555
46 418 103
16 615 127
10 073
1 025 944
64 071 804

12
13
11
14
15

9 460 688
4 505 937
5 917
1 653 210
1 140 264
16 766 016

10 372 521
6 010 308
31 572
1 835 456
688 650
18 938 507

Total assets

72 994 291

83 010 311

Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital
Capital reserves
Revaluation reserves
Currency translation reserves
Retained earnings
Non-controlling interests
Shareholders equity

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

13 921 000
11 096 095
36 355 894
-33 076 576
16 726 145
1 051 785
46 074 343

13 921 000
11 096 095
36 549 783
-27 863 052
14 929 161
1 162 742
49 795 728

Current assets
Inventories
Trade receivables
Loans and prepayments
Other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

17
18
16

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Finance lease liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

19
35
37

9 761 580
4 477 399
0
14 238 979

13 067 109
5 487 008
2 768
18 556 885

Current liabilities
Trade payables
Current portion of finance lease liabilities
Other liabilities
Advances received
Short term loans
Total current liabilities

21
37
22
23
20

2 917 065
72 941
1 588 672
667 360
7 434 932
12 680 969

4 459 622
38 535
1 996 787
655 484
7 507 269
14 657 697

26 919 948
72 994 291

33 214 583
83 010 311

79,46

68,87

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

FX rate (EUR:RUB) at respective period end date
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UCP Chemicals AG

Consolidated Income Statement for the Period January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2018

Amounts in EUR

Ref

Sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Other operating income

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Selling expenses
General and administrative expenses
Other operating expenses

Total selling, general and administrative expenses

12M 2018

12M 2017

24
25

74 922 939
-57 267 236
17 655 703

69 012 072
-51 266 370
17 745 703

26

840 357

1 225 932

27
28
29

-3 551 214
-8 006 324
-2 602 044
-14 159 581

-3 230 971
-8 645 576
-2 492 740
-14 369 287

4 336 479

4 602 347

9 601
-1 704 135

68 074
-2 597 949

-1 694 535

-2 529 875

1 982 855

1 943 020

4 624 799

4 015 492

-944 993

-606 809

3 679 806

3 408 683

76 710

34 650

3 603 096

3 374 033

0,259

0,242

74,14

65,90

Profit from operations
Financial income
Financial expenses

32
32

Net Financial result
Share of profit / loss of consolidation at-equity

10

Earnings before tax
Income taxes

33

Net profit
Attributable to non-controlling interests
Attributable to the shareholders of the
parent (group results)
Earnings per share - undiluted and diluted

34

Average FX rate (EUR:RUB) for the respective period

10
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UCP Chemicals AG

Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Period January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2018

Amounts in EUR

12M 2018

12M 2017

3 679 806

3 408 683

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
when specific conditions are met
Exchange differences
Exchange rate differences - Recycling

-4 586 417
902 514

-2 618 205
422 978

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
when specific conditions are met - Share of associates
accounted for using the equity method from associated
company
Exchange differences
Exchange rate differences - Recycling

-1 971 380
283 118

-934 600
80 293

-5 372 165

-3 049 533

0

0

Total other comprehensive income (recognised in equity) after
taxes

-5 372 165

-3 049 533

Total comprehensive income

-1 692 359

359 149

-81 930

-50 575

-1 610 429

409 724

Net profit
Other comprehensive income (recognised directly in equity) from

Total other comprehensive income (recognised in equity)
before taxes
Taxes

Attributable to non-controlling interests
Attributable to shareholders of the parent
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UCP Chemicals AG

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the Period January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2018

Amounts in EUR

12M 2018

12M 2017

4 624 799
-1 258 426
1 858 979
-922 609

4 015 492
-740 055
2 032 327
-720 048

115 663
1 681 151
-106 026
1 129 797

142 991
2 644 067
-124 016
503 271

-659 156
833 123

-2 545 723
-329 068

-1 186 674
6 110 621

2 340 535
7 219 774

Cash flow from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Interest paid in cash (relate to investing activities)
Interest received in cash
Capital contribution to at-equity consolidated companies
Cash received from current loans
Cash paid as current loans given
Net cash provided by (used for) investment activities

484 231
-1 760 101
-93 780
23 852
0
0
0
-1 345 798

877 316
-1 137 565
-185 091
31 448
-626 258
485 574
-485 574
-1 040 149

Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid in cash (relate to financing activities)
Cash received as loans
Loan repayment in cash
Finance lease payment
Proceeds from treasury shares issuance
Dividends paid
Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities

-1 704 135
14 528 165
-15 206 589
-90 217
0
-2 029 026
-4 501 802

-2 597 949
26 336 392
-27 803 516
-74 931
26 000
-1 827 450
-5 941 453

Currency translation differences

188 593

-272 674

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents after
currency translation

451 614

-34 503

688 650
1 140 264

723 153
688 650

451 614

-34 503

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax before result from discontinued operations
Income tax paid in cash / return of tax payments received
Adjustment for depreciation / appreciation
Change of interest in at-equity consolidated companies
Non-cash income/expense:
impairment losses
Net finance expenses
(Profits) / Losses from disposal of fixed assets
Other non-cash transactions

Increase / Decrease of

Inventories
Receivables, prepayments

Increase / Decrease of

Payables
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning
Ending
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

12

Ref
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UCP Chemicals AG

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Period January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2018

Additional paid
UCP AG
in capital
treasury shares

Share capital
Amounts in EUR

Revaluation
reserve

Translation
reserve

Retained
earnings

Non-controlling
interests

Total

Balance as of December 31, 2016

13 921 000

11 096 095

-26 000

37 232 852

-24 898 742

12 672 059

1 240 766

51 238 030

Total comprehensive income 2017

0

0

0

0

-2 964 309

3 374 033

-50 575

359 149

Reclassification of Revaluation
Reserve (IAS 16)
Issue of treasure shares

0

0

0

-683 069

0

683 069

0

0

0

0

26 000

0

0

0

0

26 000

0

0

0

0

0

-1 800 000

-27 450

-1 827 450

Balance as of December 31, 2017

13 921 000

11 096 095

0

36 549 783

-27 863 052

14 929 161

1 162 742

49 795 728

Total comprehensive income 2018

0

0

0

-5 213 524

3 603 096

-81 930

-1 692 359

Dividends paid

Reclassification of Revaluation
Reserve (IAS 16)
Issue of treasure shares
Dividends paid
Balance as of December 31, 2018

0

0

0

-193 889

0

193 889

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

-2 000 000

-29 026

-2 029 026

13 921 000

11 096 095

0

36 355 894

-33 076 577

16 726 146

1 051 785

46 074 343

13

13

14

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Balance as of January 1, 2018
Additions
Disposals
Reclassifications
Revaluation
Currency translation differences
Balance as of December 31, 2018

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as of January 1, 2017
Ordinary depreciation
Disposals of accumulated depreciation
Reclassifications
Currency translation differences
Balance as of December 31, 2017

Balance as of January 1, 2018
Ordinary depreciation
Disposals of accumulated depreciation
Reclassifications
Currency translation differences
Balance as of December 31, 2018

Book values
Balance as of January 1, 2017
Balance as of December 31, 2017

Balance as of January 1, 2018
Balance as of December 31, 2018

2 555
0

2 594
2 555

758
0
-657
0
-101
0

14 163
1 318
-13 683
0
-1 040
758

3 313
0
-2 872
0
0
-442
0

16 757
1 379
-13 593
0
0
-1 230
3 313

Patents, licenses
and other tangible
assets

25 660 305
23 208 943
23 208 943
20 132 634

2 555
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

758
0
-657
0
-101
0
2 595
2 555

0
0
0
0
0
0

23 208 943
22 183
0
-2 983
0
-3 095 509
20 132 634

3 313
0
-2 872
0
0
-442
0
14 163
1 318
-13 683
0
-1 040
758

25 660 305
0
-596 465
3 356
0
-1 858 254
23 208 943

Properties

16 757
1 379
-13 593
0
0
-1 230
3 313

Total

The following Notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Goodwill

Acquisition costs
Balance as of January 1, 2017
Additions
Disposals
Revaluation
Reclassifications
Currency translation differences
Balance as of December 31, 2017

Amounts in EUR

416
696
144
495
656
817

870
562
464
523
075
416

7 572 222
6 323 686

7 814 166
7 572 222

4 219
349
-37
-14
-584
3 932

4 238
400
-79
1
-342
4 219

11 791 639
0
-57 321
96 899
0
-1 574 714
10 256 503

12 053 036
0
-99 178
750 681
0
-912 900
11 791 639

Buildings

990
283
065
495
199
503

12 131 246
9 658 251

13 171 883
12 131 245

7 140
1 509
-398
14
-1 019
7 247

6 065 259
1 630 446
-43 540
-1 523
-509 652
7 140 990

236
254
126
351
0
-2 571 961
16 905 754

19 272
372
-710
543

141
012
975
445
0
-1 471 387
19 272 236

19 237
175
-50
1 382

Machinery,
equipment

3 505 692
3 760 196

4 940 033
3 505 692

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

3 505 692
1 459 444
-48 523
-637 267
0
-519 150
3 760 196

033
264
685
482
0
-314 438
3 505 692

4 940
1 146
-129
-2 136

Construction in
progress

46 418 103
39 874 767

51 586 387
46 418 103

11 360 407
1 858 979
-435 210
0
-1 603 856
11 180 321

10 304 129
2 031 008
-123 003
0
-851 728
11 360 407

57 778 510
1 853 881
-815 969
0
0
-7 761 334
51 055 088

61 890 516
1 321 276
-876 303
0
0
-4 556 979
57 778 510

Total

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Period January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2018
_____________________________________________________________
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UCP Chemicals AG

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Period January 1, 2018 – December 31,
2018
_____________________________________________________________________
Reporting According to the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
1. Consolidated Financial Statement
The consolidated financial statements are compiled pursuant to Section 245 (a) of the Austrian Commercial Code
(UGB) according to the directives of the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) applicable on the
reporting date as well as the interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
(IFRIC), in each case as applicable for the European Union (EU). They comply with the directives of the European
Union pertaining to consolidated accounts (Directive 83/349/EEC).

General Explanatory Notes
2. Company
UCP Chemicals AG is an Austrian joint stock company with seat in A-1010 Vienna, Stubenring 18 / Top 5. The
object of UCP Group is the production and trading of chemical products, in particular, phenolic resins, carbamide
resin and other specialized synthetic resins.
3. Fundamentals of the Presentation
When preparing the consolidated financial statements, all International Accounting Standards (IASs) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as well as all interpretations by the Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) and the IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) that have been endorsed by the European Union
and whose application was mandatory as at 31 December 2018 were applied.
For the preparation of these consolidated financial statements, the following new, revised or amended pronouncements are mandatory for the first time for the financial year beginning 1 January 2018.
Newly applicable or applied accounting standards:
Standard or interpretation
Published by the
IASB (endorsed by
the EU)

Mandatory application for UCP Group

Effects on the consolidated
financial
statements of UCP
Group

IAS 40

Amendments: Transfers of
Investment Property

8.12.2016
(14.3.2018)

1.1.2018

None

IFRS 2

Amendments: Classification and
Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions

20.6.2016
(26.2.2018)

1.1.2018

None

IFRS 4

Amendments: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

12.9.2016
(3.11.2017)

1.1.2018

None

IFRS 9

Financial Instruments

1.1.2018

See below

IFRS 9

Amendments: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

24.7.2014
(22.11.2016)
12.10.2017
(22.3.2018)

1.1.2019

None
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UCP Chemicals AG

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Period January 1, 2018 – December 31,
2018
_____________________________________________________________________
IFRS 15

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

IFRS 15

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers

28.5.2014
11.9.2015
(22.9.2016)
12.4.2016
(31.10.2017)

IFRIC 22

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

8.12.2016
(28.3.2018)

and

1.1.2018

See below

1.1.2018

See below

1.1.2018

None

The IASB published the final version of IFRS 9 on 24 July 2014 and amendments to IFRS 9 regarding prepayment
features with negative compensation on 12 October 2017. The new provisions of IFRS 9 (including amendments)
have been applied since 1 January 2018. IFRS 9 reforms the classification and measurement of financial instruments. The new categories specify recognition at cost or fair value (either through profit or loss for the period or
through other comprehensive income) depending on the type of financial instrument or business model. The
recognition of impairment losses on financial assets was also revised. In accordance with IFRS 9, impairment
losses are to be recognized based on an expected credit loss model. In comparison with the rules under IAS 39
(incurred loss model), provisions are to be recognized earlier under the new rules. In the area of hedge accounting, many restrictions under IAS 39 were lifted, with a stronger emphasis on the economic aspect of the hedging
relationship. Compared with the previously applied accounting policies, there are differences with respect to equity
instruments, which in the past were accounted for under the “at amortized cost” (FAAC) and “available for sale”
(FAAFS) categories while they are now classified as “at fair value through other comprehensive income” (FVOCI)
under IFRS 9 because they are held over a longer term for strategic reasons. All measurement and disposal gains
or losses for these equity instruments are recognized in other comprehensive income. However, dividends received in connection with these equity instruments must still be reported in other result from equity interests.
Financial assets from the loans and receivables (LAR) category were classified as measured at amortized cost
(AC) under IFRS 9, because the payments in connection with these financial assets constitute solely payment of
principal and interest and they are held to collect contractual cash flows. With respect to financial assets and
liabilities, there was no change in subsequent measurement as a result of the new classification rules of IFRS 9.
Consequently, the initial application of IFRS 9 had no impact on allowances as of 1 January 2018.
In the following table details of the matching of IAS 39 and IFRS 9 are presented for each class of financial assets
and liabilities of the Group as at 01 January 2018.

Interests in associated com panies
Non-current receivables
Current loans
Trade receivables
Other current receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total finance assets
Non-current finance liabilities to banks
Other non-current liabilities
Current finance liabilities to banks
Trade payables
Advances received
Other liabilities
Total finance liabilities

Initial classification according
to IAS 39
n.a.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables

New
classification
according to
IFRS 9
n.a.
Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Amortized cost

Measured
Measured
Measured
Measured
Measured
Measured

Amortized
Amortized
Amortized
Amortized
Amortized
Amortized

at
at
at
at
at
at

amortized
amortized
amortized
amortized
amortized
amortized

cost
cost
cost
cost
cost
cost

16

cost
cost
cost
cost
cost
cost

Original carrying
amount
under IAS 39
16 615 127
10 073
31 572
6 010 308
1 835 456
688 650
25 191 187

New carrying
amount
under IFRS 9
16 615 127
10 073
31 572
6 010 308
1 835 456
688 650
25 191 187

13 067 109
2 768
7 507 269
4 459 622
655 484
2 035 323
27 727 575

13 067 109
2 768
7 507 269
4 459 622
655 484
2 035 323
27 727 575
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Period January 1, 2018 – December 31,
2018
_____________________________________________________________________
The IASB published the final version of IFRS 15 on 28 May 2014. The mandatory date of initial application was
shifted with the publication dated 11 September 2015 to financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2018. In
addition, clarifications to the rules under IFRS 15 were provided on 12 April 2016. IFRS 15 replaces IAS 11, IAS
18, IFRIC 13, IFRIC 15, IFRIC 18 and SIC 31. The new standard provides for a five-step model for the recognition
of revenue. First the contract(s) with a customer are to be identified, followed by the company’s own performance
obligations. Afterwards, the transaction price is determined and allocated to the performance obligations in the
contract. Revenue is recognized in the fifth step when the entity has satisfied its performance obligation. There
have been no significant effects on the scope or timing of revenue recognition as a result of the initial application
of IFRS 15 for the provision of products as well as services. UCP Group has adopted the new standard on January
1, 2018 using the modified retrospective method, with the cumulated adjustment from initially applying this
standard recognized at January 1, 2018. As a result, the Group has not applied the requirements of IFRS 15 to
the comparative periods presented. The initial application of IFRS 15 was carried out retrospectively, whereby,
following the already existing trading pattern and contractual relationships of UCP Group, neither cumulative
adjustments as of the initial application date had to be recognized nor contract assets are to be reflected. A
quantitative presentation of the impact of adopting IFRS 15 on the consolidated income statement and total
comprehensive income for 2018 was not performed for materiality reasons.
The IASB issued new standards that were not applied by UCP Group in the 2017 reporting period because they
have either not yet been endorsed by the European Union or their application is not yet mandatory:
New accounting standards not yet applicable or applied
Standard or interpretation
Published by the
IASB (endorsed by
the EU)

Mandatory application for UCP Group

Effects on the consolidated
financial
statements of UCP
Group

IAS 1 and
IAS 8

Amendments: Definition of Material

31.10.2018
(expected 2019)

1.1.2020

None

IAS 19

7.2.2018
(13.3.2019)
12.10.2017
(8.2.2019)
22.10.2018
(expected 2019)
13.1.2016
(31.10.2017)

1.1.2019

None

1.1.2019

None

1.1.2020

None

IFRS 16

Amendments: Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or Settlement
Amendments: Long-term Interests
in Associates and Joint Ventures
Amendments: Definition of a Business
Leases

1.1.2019

See below

IFRS 17

Insurance contracts

1.1.2021

None

IFRIC 23

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments
Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in
IFRS Standards
Annual Improvements to
IFRS Standards 2015– 2017 cycle

18.5.2017
(open)
7.6.2017
(23.10.2018)
29/3/2018
(expected 2019)

1.1.2019

None

1.1.2020

None

12.12.2017
(expected 2019)

1.1.2019

None

IAS 28
IFRS 3

Various

Various

The IASB published the final version of IFRS 16 on 13 January 2016. This standard will replace IAS 17, IFRIC 4,
SIC 15 and SIC 27 in the future. The new standard specifies that all leases and the associated contractual rights
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and obligations are to be recognized on the lessee’s balance sheet. As part of the Group-wide IFRS 16 transition
project, work was carried out in the 2018 reporting period on the integration of a centralized database solution
for the management and future recognition of leases. Parallel to this, the contracts were assessed according to
the criteria of IFRS 16. The new rules of IFRS 16 will lead to an increase in total assets, lower other operating
expenses and, at the same time, higher depreciation charges and interest expenses, as well as to a shift of the
expense from leases to the commencement of the respective lease term. The initial application of IFRS 16 will be
carried out retrospectively, with the cumulative adjustments, if any, as of the date of initial application being
recognized. IFRS 16 will not be applied to agreements that were classified as an arrangement not containing a
lease under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. In addition, the opportunity will be taken to forgo impairment testing for leases.
Instead, an assessment will be conducted to determine whether a contract is onerous and the right of use is
subsequently adjusted at most by the amount of any existing provision. Lease payments for leases whose contractual term is twelve months or less or whose remaining term at the initial application date is twelve months or
less, as well as for leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, will continue to be recognized as an
expense, which will, according to the assessment, affect most leases as for country specific reasons leases in
Russia are typically concluded for a term below twelve months. According to currently available information noncurrent assets and net debt at the date of initial application of IFRS 16 will increase by around EUR 0,4 million.
In the income statement, depreciation charges and interest expense will be reported instead of lease expense.
This will lead to a slight increase in operating result, which will be offset by higher interest expense. Accordingly,
no significant effects are expected with respect to the Group result.
The consolidated financial statements are in accordance with the requirements of Section 245 (a) of the UGB
(exempting consolidated financial statement). Derogations from the accounting, evaluation and consolidation
methods for a consolidated financial statement according to Sections 244 et seq of the UGB are, to the extent
that they are not immediately obvious from the Notes to the individual items, summarized under item 45 of these
Notes.
The accounting principles of each company included in the consolidated financial statements are in accordance
with the standardized accounting rules of the UCP Group. These rules have been used by all included companies
and have not changed since the previous year.
The consolidated financial statements are compiled in accordance with IAS 21; the reporting currency is the Euro.
All of the amounts specified in the consolidated financial statements are in Euro (rounded to full amounts).
Rounding differences may be evident in certain cases due to the amounts in Euro being rounded.
In order to reinforce clarity, certain items on the Statement of Financial Position and the Income Statement have
been combined. The detailed presentation follows in the notes below.

4. Consolidation Methods
The consolidated financial statements are based on the IFRS-compliant financial statements as of December 31,
2018 of UCP Chemicals AG as well as its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated companies, which were
compiled according to standardized rules.
Capital consolidation for fully consolidated affiliated companies follows the purchase method. Here, the respective
investment book value is compared with the proportionate equity at the time of initial inclusion (purchase accounting). Any difference between cost and proportionate equity is, to the extent identifiable, allocated to assets;
goodwill remaining after the allocation, which the transferor uses to reconcile market opportunities and potential
for development that cannot be clearly identified, is capitalized.
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According to the IFRS 3 Standard (Business Combinations), goodwill from acquisitions, if any, undergoes an
annual impairment test and is only written down in the event of an extraordinary depreciation in value.
All trade receivables and trade payables, transactions, other income and expenditures from offsetting between
fully consolidated companies are eliminated. Other unilateral accounting transactions that affect income are derecognized. All consolidation transactions affecting the Income Statement are subject to calculation of deferred
taxes.
Unrealized gains and losses, which arise from the sale of goods or services between members of the Group and
which affect fixed or current assets, are eliminated unless they are immaterial.
Companies upon which significant influence can be exercised (associated companies) are valued according to the
equity method in the form of the book value method. The UCP Group's proportionate equity from the company
is valued and reported under "Interests in at-equity consolidated companies". Equity is determined according to
the same principles used for fully consolidated companies. The UCP Group's share of the total recorded gains and
losses of associates are reported as "Share of profit/loss of consolidation at-equity".

5. Scope of Consolidation
The scope of consolidation comprises UCP Chemicals AG, Vienna, as parent company and the subsidiaries it
controls:
Scope of Consolidation as of December 31, 2018
Name of company
PAO Uralchimplast
AO Management Company Chimpark Tagil
OOO Uralchimplast Amdor
OOO Uralchimplast Huettenes-Albertus
ZAO Ural Methanol Group
OOO Centre of Preventive Medicine UCP
OAO BTP Chempark Tagil

Country
Russ.
Russ.
Russ.
Russ.
Russ.
Russ.
Russ.

Federation
Federation
Federation
Federation
Federation
Federation
Federation

Share

Type of consolidation

96,69%
100%
50%
50%
50%
96,69%
48,34%

fully consolidated
fully consolidated
at equity
at equity
at equity
fully consolidated
at equity

Share

Type of consolidation

96,69%
100%
50%
50%
100%
50%
96,69%
48,34%

fully consolidated
fully consolidated
at equity
at equity
fully consolidated
at equity
fully consolidated
at equity

Scope of Consolidation as of December 31, 2017
Name of company
PAO Uralchimplast
AO Management Company Chimpark Tagil
OOO Uralchimplast Amdor
OOO Uralchimplast Huettenes-Albertus
OOO Uralchimplast Projects
ZAO Ural Methanol Group
OOO Centre of Preventive Medicine UCP
OAO BTP Chempark Tagil

Country
Russ.
Russ.
Russ.
Russ.
Russ.
Russ.
Russ.
Russ.

Federation
Federation
Federation
Federation
Federation
Federation
Federation
Federation

The reporting date for all members of the Group in Russia and Austria is December 31 of each year.
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ZAO Ural Methanol Group is a 50/50 joint venture with OOO Investnedra, part of the Russian ARETI Group, the
company plans to construct a methanol production facility in Nizhny Tagil.
On 14.9.2017 UCP Chemicals AG, as the sole shareholder of OOO Uralchimplast Projects, decided to liquidate the
company. The liquidation of OOO Uralchimplast Projects became effective on 2.11.2018. As at 31.12.2017, the
company's net assets amounted to RUB 11,5 million (EUR 0,2 million).

6. Currency Translation
The UCP Group does not operate in hyperinflationary economies within the meaning of IAS 29. Therefore,
measures within the meaning of IAS 29 are not necessary for preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
a) Foreign Currency Transactions
Each member of the Group records foreign currency transactions using the exchange rate on the day of the
respective transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies on the balance sheet reporting date
are translated at the middle rate applicable on this date. The resulting foreign currency gains and losses are
recorded in the Income Statement.
b) Translation of Individual Financial Statements into Foreign Currency
The individual financial statements of the subsidiaries situated outside the Euro-zone are translated to Euro (functional currency of the Group) using the functional currency method. Each subsidiary is an independent entity of
the Group from a financial, economic and organizational perspective, therefore, the functional currency is the
local currency of the subsidiary concerned.
The modified closing rate method is used for currency translation in the individual financial statements of subsidiaries located outside the Euro-zone. This involves assets and liabilities being translated from the respective national currency into Euro at the middle rate valid on the balance sheet reporting date (reporting date rates).
Income and expense items have been translated using average rates for the period. Currency differences resulting
from the translation of equity of the foreign company in question and from the application of differing translation
rates between the Statement of Financial Position and the Income Statement have been reported without any
impact on earnings as equity under “Reconciling items from currency translation”. Goodwill from capital consolidation is recorded as assets in the local currency and also translated at the year-end middle rate. Equity items
are translated at historical rates. The impact of recycling exchange rate differences of previous periods is reflected
in the consolidated cash flow statement under other non-cash transactions.
c) The Following Exchange Rates were used for Foreign Currency Transactions:
1 EUR =

RUB

Average exchange rate in the period ending December 31, 2017
Exchange rate on the balance sheet date, December 31, 2017

65,9014
68,8668

Average exchange rate in the period ending December 31, 2018
Exchange rate on the balance sheet date, December 31, 2018

74,1433
79,4605

(Source: Russian Central Bank)
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7. Accounting Policies
a) Goodwill and Negative Goodwill Arising from Business Combinations
Goodwill arising from business combinations and other forms of consolidation is subject to annual impairment
testing. Impairment losses are recorded if events take place that justify a decrease in the value of goodwill.
Negative goodwill arising on consolidation is subject to additional testing for unrecorded liabilities and/or contingent liabilities. Goodwill relating to "lucky buy" situations is recognized as income at initial consolidation.
b) Other Intangible Assets and Tangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired are valued in the Statement of Financial Position at cost less amortization and impairment losses.
Tangible fixed assets are valued at cost (acquisition/production) less depreciation and impairment losses. The
cost of production contains those costs which have been incurred for production or development as of the date
of the financial statement. Borrowing costs have been capitalized since fiscal year 2008 in accordance with IAS
23. Costs for general management and distribution are not capitalized. Other intangible assets and depreciable
tangible assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the expected service life of the asset in question.
According to IAS 16.31 et seq, production and warehousing facilities in Nizhniy Tagil, Russia, have been reported
on the basis of a fair market value appraisal as of January 1, 2004, and the land of the site in Nizhniy Tagil as of
January 1, 2009. These items are stated at their fair value less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Fair market value is periodically determined by independent external appraisers based on market assumptions
and is subject to periodic revaluation. The last revaluation was performed in 2014, the next revaluation is scheduled for 2019.
Any increase in value arising from revaluation of this production and storage facilities is credited to the revaluation
reserve. However, the increase in value credited to the Income Statement corresponds with the impairment
previously charged to the Income Statement following revaluation of the same asset. Any decrease in the book
value of production and storage facilities due to a revaluation is recognized on the Income Statement only as far
as it exceeds an existing revaluation reserve.
Ordinary depreciation of revalued production and storage facilities is charged to the Income Statement. Upon
sale or decommissioning of revalued production facilities, any surplus previously added to the revaluation reserve
is directly reclassified to retained earnings.
The scheduled linear depreciation is based predominantly on the following lengths of service:
Intangible Assets
Software

3 – 4 years

Tangible Assets
Buildings
Machines and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
IT equipment
Vehicles

33
3 – 10
3 – 10
3–4
4–5
21

years
years
years
years
years
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c) Impairment of Tangible Fixed Assets and Intangible Assets with Exception of Goodwill
At each balance sheet reporting date the Group assesses whether there is any indicator that suggests the book
value of a tangible or intangible asset may be impaired. If any such indicator exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is valued in order to ascertain the extent of the possible impairment.
If the recoverable amount for the individual asset cannot be valued, the valuation is made for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. An intangible asset with an indefinite service life is retested for impairment
annually or as soon as any indication of impairment occurs.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pretax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its book value, the
book value of the asset (the cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. Excepting revalued
assets, an impairment loss is recognized as an expense immediately. In this case, the impairment loss is treated
as impairment owing to revaluation. In the event of a subsequent reversal of impairment, the book value of the
asset (the cash-generating unit) is increased to the estimated recoverable amount. The increase of the book value
is limited to the value that would have been determined beforehand, if no impairment loss had been recorded for
the asset (the cash-generating unit) in previous years. A reversal of the impairment loss is immediately recognized
in the Income Statement unless the relevant asset is carried at the revalued amount, where reversal of the
impairment loss is regarded as an increase due to revaluation.
d) Non-current Assets Held for Sale
Non-current assets and groups of assets are classified as being held for sale if their book value can be recovered
more effectively through sale than continued use. This condition is construed as being met only if the sale is
highly likely and the asset (or group of assets) held for sale is available for immediate sale in its current condition.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classification. The relevant asset must be available for immediate sale and
the actual completion thereof must be highly probable.
Non-current assets (and groups of assets) classified as being held for sale are reported separately in the year in
which the reclassification occurs. In accordance with IFRS 5, figures from the previous year are not adjusted. The
lower of either the book value or fair value less costs to sell are used for valuation.
e) Inventories
Inventories are stated at cost (acquisition/production) or the lower net realizable value on the balance sheet
reporting date. Cost includes all expenses incurred in bringing the asset into the required condition and respective
location or, where applicable, directly related expenses such as material, labor and an appropriate share of the
joint material and/or labor expenses.
The weighted average price method is used for the valuation of inventories. Interest on borrowed capital as well
as management and distribution overhead costs are not a component of the production cost of current assets.
Appropriate deductions will be applied for inventory risks arising from the storage period and/or decreased usability.
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f) Trade Receivables, Other Receivables and Other Assets
Under IAS 39 trade receivables and other receivables were stated at their nominal value less adjustments for
anticipated irrecoverable amounts while in accordance with IFRS 9, impairment losses are to be recognized based
on an expected credit loss model. Other assets are valued at cost less impairment losses. Impairment losses are
stated according to age and past due date at a flat rate if individual receivables are irrecoverable.
g) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and readily available free assets with credit institutions. Currency translation methods are listed at item 6 of these Notes.
h) Other Provisions
Other provisions are stated if the company has a legal or constructive obligation to a third party due to a past
event and if it is likely that such obligation will result in an outflow of funds. Provisions are stated on the basis of
the best estimate of the value at the time the annual financial statements are compiled. If a reasonable estimate
of the value is not possible, no provision is recorded. Should the present value of the provisions that are determined on the basis of a generally accepted interest rate differ essentially from the nominal value, the present
value of the liability is recorded.
i) Taxes
The tax reported for the fiscal year encompasses the income taxes for each company, which are calculated on
the basis of the taxable income and the tax rate applicable in the respective country ("Effective taxes"), as well
as changes in tax accruals and deferrals. Tax accruals and deferrals are determined using the balance sheet
liability method for all temporary differences between valuation of the balance sheet items in the Consolidated
Financial Statements and the tax amounts for the individual companies. The calculations take account of the tax
benefits expected from existing tax loss carryovers. Exceptions to these full tax accruals and deferrals arise from
differences derived from non-tax-deductible goodwill. Deferred tax liability in respect of asset revaluation is recognized directly in equity and does not affect income.
For Russian companies the calculation of deferred taxes is based on a rate of taxation of 20% and in Austria the
current corporate tax rate of 25% was applied. The consolidated financial statements of the Group are based on
the corporate tax rate of the parent company (25%).
j) Financial Liabilities
Upon recognition, liabilities are stated in the amount of the actual inflow. Premiums, discounts or other differences
between amounts received and amounts repaid are distributed across the financing term according to the effective
interest method and stated in the financial result.
k) Trade Payables and Other Liabilities
Trade payables and other liabilities are valued at their repayment amount.
l) Revenue and Expense Recognition
Revenue is generally recognized when control over a product or a service is transferred to a customer. It is
measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. When goods such as resins and similar goods are sold, the delivery of each quantity unit
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normally represents a single performance obligation. Revenue is recognized when control of the goods has transferred to the customer, which is the point in time when legal ownership as well as the risk of loss has passed to
the customer and is determined on the basis of the Incoterm agreed in the contract with the customer. Revenue
from services agreements (or rent agreements) is recognized to the extent of the services provided up to the
balance sheet date while typically settlements are set on a monthly basis by contract. Sales and settlements are
performed according to local common payment terms (< 12 months) and contain no financing components. There
are typically no agreements on non-cash components while in specific cases such are recognized following the
measurement of the transaction price according to IFRS 15. Operating expenses are charged to the income
statement as soon as services are taken or costs accrue.
m) Interest and Financial Investment Income and Expenses
Interest and financial investment expenses include the interest accrued for external financing, interest-related
expenses, all currency gains and losses associated with the financing as well as losses resulting from the sale or
impairment of financial assets. Income from financial investments include interest, dividends and similar income
arising from the investment of funds and investment in financial assets as well as gains from the sale of financial
assets. Interest accrued is calculated on the basis of the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognized
when the distribution of the dividends has been decided.
n) Derivative Financial Instruments
The Group does not employ derivative financial instruments, neither to hedge exposure to foreign exchange nor
to reduce the risks associated with interest rate fluctuations.
o) Estimates
In preparing the consolidated financial statements it is necessary to make certain estimates and assumptions that
influence the reporting of assets and liabilities, the declaration of other liabilities as of the balance sheet reporting
date and the reporting of income and expenses during the reporting period.
Definition of the service life of tangible fixed assets is based on estimates taken from experience gained from the
operational use of comparable equipment. Furthermore, the assessment of the recoverability of deferred taxes
follows estimates made by Management. In particular, estimates and forecasts are made by the Management for
the net cash flows and WACC of the Group as well as specific cash-generating units during the planning periods
when assessing the impairment of goodwill and assets. These estimates are made to the best of Management's
knowledge and belief and are based on the assumption of a going concern, past experience and take into account
the remaining uncertainty in an adequate manner. The actual figures that become known at a later date may
differ from these estimations.
p) Government Grants
Government grants, including non-monetary grants at fair value, shall not be recognised until there is reasonable assurance that: (a) the entity will comply with the conditions attaching to them and (b) the grants will be
received. Government grants are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
entity recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the entity with no future related costs shall be recognized in
profit or loss of the period in which it becomes receivable.
Grants related to income are deducted in reporting from the related expense.
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q) Transfer Pricing
Intergroup transactions comprise, inter alia, the movement of raw materials and finished products, management
services and financing. No margin is charged on administrative and financing costs within the Group.
r) Segment Reporting
Segment reporting according to IFRS 8 has been abstained from in accordance with this standard.
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Detailed Disclosures of Selected Financial Statement Items
8. Intangible Assets and Goodwill
A detailed development of intangible assets is shown on the enclosed consolidated schedule of fixed assets.

9. Tangible Assets
The development of assets is shown in the enclosed consolidated schedule of fixed assets.
The Group’s land was revalued by OOO Evrazia Analitika, Moscow, an independent agency and member of the
appraiser board SMAO, as per June 30, 2014. Fair values were estimated based on recent market transactions,
which were then adjusted for specific conditions relating to the land.
The net book value of the land on December 31, 2018 is EUR 20.132.634. This comprises a revaluation amount
of RUB 1.561.907.817 (EUR 19.656.406). If the cost model would have been used the carrying amount of the not
revalued land would be EUR 476.228 as of December 31, 2018.
Machinery and equipment in Nizhniy Tagil, Russia, are reported according to IAS 16.31 et seq on the basis of a
fair market value appraisal on December 31, 2014 less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Production and warehousing facilities were also revalued by OOO Evrazia Analitika. Fair values were estimated based on
recent market transactions, which were then adjusted for specific conditions relating to the company or using the
replacement cost approach which reflects the cost to a market participant to obtain assets of comparable utility
and age adjusted for obsolescence.
If the cost model would have been used the carrying amount of the not revalued machinery and equipment would
be EUR 2.910.427 as of December 31, 2018.
The net book value of the machinery and equipment on December 31, 2018 is EUR 9.658.251. This comprises a
revaluation amount of RUB 536.185.462 (EUR 6.747.824).
Unobservable input factor
land, area 1
land, area 2
TOTAL

price for 100m2, EUR
925
1 744

Fair value
m2
156 027
1 072 097
1 228 124

total, EUR
1 443 702
18 696 339
20 140 041

Relations of unobservable factors at fair value: The higher the price / sqm, the higher the fair value.
In 2018 borrowing costs of EUR 93.780 (2017: EUR 185.091) were capitalized in accordance with IAS 23. In
relation to the rate for financing costs reference is made to point 32. Fixed assets of the Group, like machinery
and construction in progress, with a net book value of EUR 11.832.981 (2017: EUR 18.167.638) are provided for
financial liabilities as collateral.
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10. Interests in at-equity consolidated Companies
OAO BTP Chempark Tagil
Book value of interest of OAO BTP Chempark Tagil
Pro rata share of equity
Elimination of intercompany profits from the purchase
of fixed assets from PAO Uralchimplast
Book value (48,34% - interest)

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

3 714 085

4 346 394

-1 442 540
2 271 545

-1 704 997
2 641 397

ZAO Ural Methanol Group
Book value of 50%-interest of ZAO Ural Methanol Group
Pro rata share of equity
Elimination of intercompany profits from the purchase
of a building from PAO Uralchimplast
Book value (50% - interest)

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

6 431 887

7 482 460

-354 986
6 076 901

-409 593
7 072 867

OOO Uralchimplast Amdor
Book value of interest of OOO Uralchimplast Amdor
Pro rata share of equity
Elimination of intercompany profits from the purchase
of fixed assets and inventories from PAO Uralchimplast
Book value (50% - interest)

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

1 151 631

1 269 115

-167 848
983 783

-192 247
1 076 868

OOO Uralchimplast Huettenes-Albertus
Book value of interest of OOO Uralchimplast Huettenes-Albertus
Pro rata share of equity
Elimination of intercompany profits from the purchase
of fixed assets and inventories from PAO Uralchimplast
Book value (50% - interest)

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

5 944 223

5 865 203

-42 933
5 901 290

-41 207
5 823 996

15 233 518

16 615 128

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

187 807
7 234 388
61 405
0
7 360 790

204 279
8 486 277
70 310
0
8 620 247

-7 043 021

-5 901 670

355 535
-118 106

389 985
-172 526

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

335 183
12 954 853
426 262
0
12 863 774

608 748
14 786 839
430 667
0
14 964 919

-17 000 374

-15 012 847

0
-113 578

0
-725 783

Key financial information of at-equity consolidated entities (100% basis)
OAO BTP Chempark Tagil
Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Equity
Including balancing item for foreign currency translation
Sales revenue
Annual profit / loss after tax
ZAO Ural Methanol Group
Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Equity
Including balancing item for foreign currency translation
Sales revenue
Annual profit / loss after tax
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OOO Uralchimplast Amdor

31.12.2018

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Equity

4 164 008
2 108 448
3 217 200
751 994
2 303 262

Including balancing item for foreign currency translation
Sales revenue
Annual profit / loss after tax
OOO Uralchimplast Huettenes-Albertus
Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Equity
Including balancing item for foreign currency translation
Sales revenue
Annual profit / loss after tax

31.12.2017
4
1
1
1
2

154
830
620
826
538

313
842
619
306
231

-796 588

-443 858

11 602 230
597 414

12 377 223
845 874

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

15
3
1
6
11

440
266
674
586
446

9 513 012
3 894 213
1 676 819
0
11 730 406

-3 325 479

-1 611 407

30 134 865
3 541 728

28 526 127
3 870 103

692
713
350
166
888

As at 31 December 2018, there were no significant access restrictions on assets of companies accounted for
using the equity method.
at-Equity - profits / losses

31.12.2018

ZAO Ural Methanol Group
OAO BTP Chempark Tagil
OOO Uralchimplast Amdor
OOO Uralchimplast Huettenes-Albertus

-56
-29
298
1 770
1 982

789
928
707
864
855

31.12.2017
-362
-52
422
1 935
1 943

892
077
937
052
020

11. Loans and Prepayments
31.12.2018
Current loans and prepayments
Loans to employees

31.12.2017
Current loans and prepayments
OOO Uralchimplast Amdor
Loans to employees

Interest rate
19%

Interest rate
14%
19%

Maturity
31.12.2018

Maturity
31.12.2017
31.12.2017

Local book
value
RUB
470 132

Local book
value
EUR
5 917
5 917

Local book
value
RUB
1 694 283
479 992

Local book
value
EUR
24 602
6 970
31 572

All loans are based on the prevailing commercial interest rates. The loans employees were granted without collateral.
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12. Inventories

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished products and goods

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

8 094 853
545 137
820 698
9 460 688

8 869 010
459 153
1 044 359
10 372 521

Changes in inventories are due to the restructuring of the product portfolio and the currency exchange rate. As
in the prior period, no inventories are provided as collateral for financial liabilities.

13. Trade Receivables
Trade receivables
Receivables from third parties
Receivables from at-equity consolidated companies
OOO Uralchimplast Amdor
OOO Uralchimplast HA
ZAO Ural Methanol Group
OAO BTP Chempark Tagil
Valuation allowance

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

3 883 414

5 502 507
0
930 566
5 507
1 857
2 714
-432 844
6 010 308

1 144 183
133 856
1 547
2 335
-659 398
4 505 937

Trade receivables have changed following the appreciation of the Rubel against the reporting currency. Against
last year the valuation allowance increased by around EUR 226.554.

14. Other Receivables

31.12.2018
Prepayments to staff
VAT receivable
Income tax receivable
Other tax receivable
Advances
Allowance for advances
Other short term receivables
Allowance for miscellaneous receivables

10
127
204
40
1 105
-11
188
-12
1 653

740
140
999
934
219
840
952
934
210

31.12.2017
11
164
186
39
881
-8
560

435
766
323
577
056
504
803
0
1 835 456

Other short term receivables as of 31.12.2017 comprised an amount of EUR 166.987,60 (USD 200.000,00) which
related to an option acquired in 2016 regarding the purchase of another 50% of the shares in ZAO „UralMethanolGroup“. As the realization of the methanol project is now actively pursued by all stakeholders, the option was not
exercised and the option fee was forfeited in 2018. Other advance payments mainly relate to orders of raw
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materials, for which better contract conditions could be secured under advance payment terms. Other tax receivables relate mostly to income- and land-tax prepayments. Long term receivables relate to advances to subcontractors.

15. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Current accounts
Short term deposits
Petty cash

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

1 136 975
0
3 289
1 140 264

669 378
15 000
4 272
688 650

16. Equity
Share capital of EUR 13.921.000 (December 31, 2017: EUR 13.921.000) is divided into 13.921.000 registered
shares.
The development of equity as well as of minority interests is shown in the enclosed "Consolidated Statements of
Changes in Equity." The revaluation reserve in accordance with IAS 16 is a result of the revaluation of certain
tangible assets and land of the site in Nizhniy Tagil in 2014.
Retained earnings of the parent company, UCP Chemicals AG, of EUR 3.634.313 (31.12.2017: 3.743.212) comprise an amount of EUR 1.040.058 which is restricted from dividend distribution as resulting from the capitalization
of deferred tax liabilities. A dividend distribution in the amount of EUR 2.300.000 is proposed by management
while the remaining amount will be carried forward. In 2018 the dividend resolution amounted to EUR 2.000.000.
Fiscal Impacts of the Distribution of Dividends within the Group
Dividend payments from Russian subsidiaries to the Austrian parent company are, in accordance with the double
taxation treaty, subject to withholding tax in the amount of 15%. If particular conditions on the participation in
the Russian subsidiary are met, the withholding tax will be reduced to 5%; the company is fulfilling these conditions.
In 2018 dividends of RUB 125,8 million (EUR 1,670 million) were declared and paid out by OOO Uralchimplast
Huettenes-Albertus. According to its share of 50 % in this subsidiary UCP Chemicals AG received RUB 62,9 million
(EUR 0,835 million).
In 2018 dividends of RUB 36,1 million (EUR 0,480 million) were declared and paid out by OOO Uralchimplast
Amdor. According to its share of 50 % in this subsidiary UCP Chemicals AG received RUB 18,04 million (EUR 0,24
million).
In 2018 dividends of RUB 66,0 million (EUR 0,875 million) were declared and paid out by PAO Uralchimplast.

17. Revaluation Reserves

Balance as of 01.01.
Reallocation to retained earnings

30

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

36 549 783
-193 889
36 355 894

37 232 852
-683 069
36 549 783
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Production and warehousing facilities in Nizhniy Tagil, Russia, have been reported according to IAS 16.31 et seq
on the basis of a fair market value appraisal since 2004, and the land of the site in Nizhniy Tagil since 2009.
Movements in 2018 originate from reallocations to retained earnings in relation to sale of revalued assets, which
do not affect net income according to IAS 16. The amount of the revaluation reserves less deferred taxes as of
31 December, 2018, is EUR 36,4 million.

18. Currency Translation Reserves

Currency translation reserves from associated companies
Currency translation reserves from group companies

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

-9 485 095
-23 591 482
-33 076 576

-7 796 832
-20 066 220
-27 863 052

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

5 492 792
0
2 265 276
0
2 003 511
9 761 580

7 093 258
2 904 157
2 904 157
165 537
0
13 067 109

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

4 892 738
0
2 516 974
25 220
7 434 932

4 015 026
3 461 000
0
31 243
7 507 269

19. Non-current Financial Liabilities

Sberbank (RUB)
Primsocbank (RUB)
UniCredit Bank (RUB)
AlfaBank (RUB)
Rosbank (RUB)

20. Short Term Financial Liabilities

Sberbank (RUB)
AKB-Svyaz bank (RUB)
Primsocbank (RUB)
Accrual for bank interests (RUB)

A detailed statement of short term financial liabilities and their respective maturity dates and interest rates as of
the balance sheet reporting date is attached to the Notes. The financial liabilities are secured by pledging of
tangible fixed assets with a net book value of EUR 11.832.981 (2017: EUR 18.167.638) of PAO Uralchimplast.
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21. Trade Payables

Liabilities to third parties
Liabilities to associated companies
OOO Uralchimplast HA
OAO BTP Chempark Tagil

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

2 668 954

4 246 218

65 843
182 268
2 917 065

0
213 404
4 459 622

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

4
193
764
842
672

1 840
756 006
425 550
801 699
1 996 787

22. Other Liabilities

Income tax liabilities
Other tax liabilities
Liabilities to employees
Other

705
389
473
1 588

Tax liabilities mainly relate to VAT with EUR 0,4 million (2017: EUR 0,4 million) and social tax with EUR 0,1 million
(2017: EUR 0,1 million). Other liabilities mainly comprise personnel provisions of EUR 0,3 million (2017: EUR 0,2
million).

23. Advances Received

Received advances for goods and services
from third parties
Received advances for goods and services from associated
companies

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

667 360

312 332

0
667 360

343 151
655 484

Received advances relate to contractual obligations and basically comprise prepayments from customers which
are according to commercial patterns agreed in view of credit risks of the counterparty upon conclusion of a
contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Income Statement
24. Sales Revenue

Revenues with third parties
Revenues with associated companies

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

56 071 355
18 851 584
74 922 939

52 441 666
16 570 406
69 012 072

31.12.2018
66 743 320
8 095 570
84 048
74 922 939

31.12.2017
60 599 103
8 363 439
49 531
69 012 072

Sales revenue by categories comprise:

Sale of produced goods
Services provided
Resale of products

Sale of produced goods concern chemical goods produced by PAO Uralchimplast. Services are mainly provided
within the framework of the Chempark Tagil such as water purification, rental or facility services to residents.
Resale of products is only performed to a minor extent and typically relates to complementary sales of sourced
products as package solutions jointly with produced goods.

25. Cost of Sales

Raw material
Energy
Personnel costs
Miscellaneous cost of sales
Depreciation of production facilities

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

47 379 178
3 458 020
4 090 927
658 699
1 680 413
57 267 236

40 763 887
3 587 451
4 263 838
824 669
1 826 525
51 266 370

Miscellaneous cost of sales in 2018 primarily comprise rental costs with EUR 0,5 million (2017: EUR 0,5 million),
repair and maintenance with EUR 0,1 million (2017: EUR 0,3 million) and transportation cost. See item 27 for a
summary of the transportation costs.

26. Other Operating Income

Gains on sale of fixed assets
Rental
Miscellaneous
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31.12.2018

31.12.2017

103 471
0
736 886
840 357

185 772
356 537
683 623
1 225 932
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Miscellaneous income included in 2018 income from package return, operating a canteen and other sundry minor
items.
UCP Group has entered into rental agreements with several contracting parties as a lessor, these concern operating leases. The operating lease agreements essentially comprise the provisioning of equipment and premises in
Russia and Austria.
Minimum lease payments from existing lease agreements are as follows:

not later than one year
later than one year and not later than five years

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

332 042
1 328 166
1 660 208

356 537
1 426 147
1 782 684

As these are mostly permanent rental and leasing contracts, the statement for "minimum payments for more than
five years" is omitted. For country specific reasons leases in Russia are typically concluded for a term below twelve
months.

27. Selling Expenses

Personnel expenses
Transport costs
Other selling expenses
Depreciation of selling facilities

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

105 456
2 993 781
423 370
28 606
3 551 214

104 427
2 785 583
327 655
13 307
3 230 971

Other selling expenses as of 31 December 2018 primarily relate to package expenses of EUR 0,2 million (EUR 0,2
million). The transportation costs posted under selling expenses are those that are not immediately passed on to
the customers, but factored into the sales price of the respective product.
Total transportation costs comprise the following:

Transport costs in cost of sales
Transport costs in selling expense
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31.12.2018

31.12.2017

26 776
2 993 781
3 020 557

31 871
2 785 583
2 817 453
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28. General and Administrative Expenses

Personnel costs
Other taxes
Depreciation
Audit, consulting, software support
Fire brigade service
Security service
Other general and administrative expenses

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

4 758 538
542 751
136 637
609 708
219 010
249 338
1 490 341
8 006 324

4 777 745
579 045
149 404
817 856
243 822
237 181
1 840 523
8 645 576

Other taxes primarily relate to property tax of EUR 0,4 million (2017: EUR 0,4 million). Other expenses include
material costs of EUR 0,2 million (2017: EUR 0.2 million) as well as a number of items such as insurance, health
care, other rents, travel expenses, etc. with individual amounts of less than EUR 0.2 million. Auditor's expenses
for the audit of the annual financial statements amounted to EUR 0,1 million in 2018, (2017: EUR 0.1 million).
Expenses for research and development amount to EUR 0.3 million (2017: EUR 0.3 million).

29. Other operating expenses

Expenses from sales of fixed assets to other companies
Realised and unrealised exchange rate expenses
Depreciation expenses
Personnel costs
Loss on impairment of raw materials
Bank fee
Miscellaneous operating expenses

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

0
1 523 799
7 112
42 848
115 663
137 842
774 780
2 602 044

61 756
863 650
22 336
94 594
142 991
108 093
1 199 319
2 492 740

The line “miscellaneous operating expenses” as of 31 December 2018 includes inter alia change in the bad debt
provision of EUR 0,3 million (2017: EUR 0,0 million) and maintenance expenses of EUR 0,1 million (2017: EUR
0,1 million). Remunerations to Members of the Supervisory Board in 2018 amounted to EUR 68.750 (2017: EUR
48.000).

30. Personnel Expenses
Under this item personnel expenses, which are shown under items 25 (Cost of Sales), 27 (Selling Expenses), 28
(General and Administrative Expenses) and those related to maintenance of non-core and reserved facilities and
included in the line “Miscellaneous operating expenses” in item 29 (Other operating expenses) are summarized.
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Salaries
Social security expenses

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

6 999 074
1 998 694
8 997 769

7 154 723
2 085 881
9 240 604

31. Amortization and Depreciation Expenses
Under this item amortization and depreciation expenses, which are shown under items 25 (Cost of Sales), 27
(Selling Expenses), 28 (General and Administrative Expenses) and those related to maintenance of non-core and
reserved facilities and included in the line “Miscellaneous operating expenses” in item 29 (Other operating expenses), are summarized.

Amortization of intangible assets
Depreciation of fixed assets

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

0
1 852 769
1 852 769

1 318
2 011 573
2 014 210

32. Financial Income and Financial Expenses

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

Interest income arising from finacial assets not measured at FVTPL
Loans and receivables

2 268

29 921

406

28 734

7 333
0

38 153
0

9 601

68 074

-1 631 135
-73 000
0

-2 486 805
-111 144
0

Financial costs

-1 704 135

-2 597 949

Net finance costs recognised in profit or loss

-1 694 535

-2 529 875

including interest from at-equity consolidated
company (OOO UCP-Amdor)
Unimpaired held-to-maturity investments
Interest income from banks
Dividends
Financial income

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Interest expense from banks
Interest expense from others
Write-down of financial assets

In 2018 borrowing costs of EUR 93.780 (2017: EUR 185.091) were capitalized in accordance with IAS 23 at an
average financing costs of 9,06%.
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33. Income Taxes

Current income tax expenses
Movements in deferred taxes

Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit before tax (continuing operations)
At tax rate of the parent company
calculated tax expense
Actual tax expense
Difference
Calculated effective tax rate

25%

Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Differing foreign tax rate (20%, Russ. Fed.)
Withholding tax on dividends
Other differences

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

1 217 091
-272 098
944 993

661 780
-54 971
606 809

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

4 624 799

4 015 492

1 156 200
944 993
211 207
20,43%

1 003 873
606 809
397 064
15,11%

190 175
-94 695
115 727
211 207

104 084
-101 054
394 034
397 064

In reference to IAS 12.47 for Russian companies the corporate tax rate is 20% and for the Austrian company the
corporate tax rate is 25%.

34. Earnings per Share
Undiluted and diluted earnings per share are calculated in accordance with IAS 33 as follows:

Profit/loss for the period after non-controlling interests
Weighted average number of shares - undiluted = diluted
Earnings per share - undiluted = diluted
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31.12.2018

31.12.2017

3 603 096
13 921 000

3 374 033
13 921 000

0,259

0,242
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35. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
31.12.2018
Assets
Property
Other non-current assets
Current assets
Total
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total
Tax losses carries forward
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
Offset of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities due
to the same taxation authority
Tax effect from consolidation adjustments
Net deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

31.12.2017

Liabilities

Assets

Liabilities

0
113 167
18 089
131 256

5 229 430
0
0
5 229 430

0
117 678
37
117 715

6 253 985
0
75 009
6 328 994

35 334
0
35 334
1 040 058
1 206 648

0
0
0
0
5 229 430

40 890
0
40 890
1 072 571
1 231 176

0
0
0
0
6 328 994

-164 776

-164 776

-157 479

-157 479

-56 727
985 144

-587 255
4 477 399

-47 752
1 025 944

-684 508
5 487 008

Additional Disclosures
36. Financial Instruments and Risk Disclosure
The financial instruments only include primary financial instruments. Derivative instruments are not employed
apart from the option agreement as set out in point 14 of the Notes.
Essentially, the primary financial instruments existing in the Group are financial investments, trade receivables,
cash held with financial institutions, financial liabilities and trade payables.
Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the degree to which the inputs
to the measurement are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety:
Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.
Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Liabilities are accounted for at
amortized costs, securities and loans under above mentioned level 1 and level 2, respectively.
In 2017 and 2018, there were no financial instruments in the UCP Group that are regularly measured at fair value.
At UCP, liabilities are generally carried at amortized cost. In the case of bonds, fair value is determined using
market prices (Level 1), while the fair value of loans is derived using a net present value-oriented valuation
method and allocated to Level 2.
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The following table compares the book value of the financial instruments (assets) with the fair market value:
Measured at
amortized cost
31.12.2018

Fair value
throught proft
or loss

Balance sheet
31.12.2018

Market value
31.12.2018

Non current financial instruments (assets)
Interests in associated companies

- No categorization - At Equity

15 233 518

-

15 233 518

15 233 518

134 846

-

134 846

134 846

4 505 937

-

4 505 937

4 505 937

5 917

-

5 917

5 917

- Loans and Receivables

1 653 210

-

1 653 210

1 653 210

Cash and cash equivalents

1 140 264

-

1 140 264

1 140 264

Long term receivables

- Loans and Receivables
Current financial instruments (assets)
Trade receivables

- Loans and Receivables
Current loan receivables

- Loans and Receivables
Other receivables

Measured at
amortized cost
31.12.2017

Fair value
throught proft
or loss

Balance sheet
31.12.2017

Market value
31.12.2017

Non current financial instruments (assets)
Interests in associated companies

- No categorization - At Equity

16 615 127

-

16 615 127

16 615 127

10 073

-

10 073

10 073

6 010 308

-

6 010 308

6 010 308

31 572

-

31 572

31 572

1 835 456

-

1 835 456

1 835 456

688 650

-

688 650

688 650

Long term receivables

- Loans and Receivables

Current financial instruments (assets)
Trade receivables

- Loans and Receivables
Current loan receivables

- Loans and Receivables

Other receivables

- Loans and Receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
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The following table compares the book value of the financial instruments (liabilities) with the fair market value:
Measured at
amortized cost
31.12.2018

Non current financial liabilities

- Measured at amortized cost

Other long term liabilities

- Measured at amortized cost

Fair value
throught proft
or loss

Balance sheet
31.12.2018

Market value
31.12.2018

9 761 580

-

9 761 580

9 761 580

0

-

0

0

2 917 065

-

2 917 065

2 917 065

1 661 613

-

1 661 613

1 661 613

667 360

-

667 360

667 360

7 434 932

-

7 434 932

7 434 932

Current financial instruments (liabilities)
Trade payables

- Measured at amortized cost
Other liabilities

- Measured at amortized cost
Advances received

- Measured at amortized cost
Short term loans

- Measured at amortized cost

Measured at
amortized cost
31.12.2017

Fair value
throught proft
or loss

Balance sheet
31.12.2017

Market value
31.12.2017

Non current financial instruments (liabilities)
Non current financial liabilities

- Measured at amortized cost

13 067 109

-

13 067 109

13 067 109

2 768

-

2 768

2 768

4 459 622

-

4 459 622

4 459 622

2 035 323

-

2 035 323

2 035 323

655 484

-

655 484

655 484

7 507 269

-

7 507 269

7 507 269

Other long term liabilities

- Measured at amortized cost

Current financial instruments (liabilities)
Trade payables

- Measured at amortized cost
Other liabilities

- Measured at amortized cost

Advances received

- Measured at amortized cost
Short term loans

- Measured at amortized cost

Notes to the cash flow statement
The cash flow statement reports the cash flows classified by operating, investing and financing activities. Cash
flow from operating activities is derived according to the indirect method. The components of cash and cash
equivalents consist entirely of cash on hand and at banks over which the Group has free disposal and correspond
to cash and cash equivalents as reported on the statement of financial position.

40

40

UCP Chemicals AG

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Period January 1, 2018 – December 31,
2018
_____________________________________________________________________
The following table presents changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

Long-term
bank loans
13 067 109

January 1, 2018
Interest paid
Increase in loans
Repayments of loans
Total cash flows relating to financial activities

11 123 329
-6 055 168
5 068 160

Net finance expenses
Reclass between long-term/short-term borrowings
Currency translation differences
Total non-cash changes

Short-term
bank loans
7 476 027
3 404 836
-9 151 421
-5 746 585

Interest
payable for
bank loans
31 243

Total
20 574 378

-1 704 135

-1 704 135
14 528 165
-15 206 589
-1 704 135 -2 382 560

-6 023
1 698 112

1 704 135
0
-2 699 443
-995 307

7 409 712

25 220

17 196 511

Long-term
bank loans
18 906 037

Short-term
bank loans
4 779 897

Interest
payable for
bank loans
30 765

Total
23 716 699

21 314 274
-20 072 676
1 241 598

5 022 119
-7 730 839
-2 708 721

Net finance expenses
Reclass between long-term/short-term borrowings
Currency translation differences
Total non-cash changes

-5 892 866
-1 187 659
-7 080 525

5 892 866
-488 015
5 404 851

December 31, 2017

13 067 109

7 476 027

December 31, 2018

January 1, 2017
Interest paid
Increase in loans
Repayments of loans
Total cash flows relating to financial activities

-6 743 700
-1 629 990
-8 373 690

6 743 700
-1 063 430
5 680 270

9 761 580

1 704 135

-2 597 949

-2 597 949
26 336 392
-27 803 516
-2 597 949 -4 065 072
2 486 805
111 622
2 598 427

2 486 805
0
-1 564 052
922 752

31 243

20 574 379

The columns “Short-term bank loans” and “Interest payable for bank loans” in the above table represent the total
amount of short term loans. The “total“ column in the above table represents the total amount of current and
non-current financial liabilities.
Currency Exchange Risk
Currency exchange risks from operating activities only exist to a limited extent because the operating companies
invoice in the respective functional currency (Russian Ruble) and export sales to Western Europe, which are
charged in Euro, are immaterial in the period under review. Therefore, hedging activities were not required.
Financial liabilities assumed in Russia are entirely denominated in Ruble as of 31 December 2018.
On the assumption that, with all other factors remaining the same, the Ruble had appreciated/devaluated against
the average Euro rate for 2018 by 10%, earnings after taxes would have been EUR 402.642 higher / EUR 329.434
lower (2017: EUR 381.383 higher / EUR 312.040 lower). By analogy, after a change by 20% earnings after taxes
would have been EUR 905.944 higher / EUR 603.962 lower (2017: EUR 858.111 higher / EUR 572.074 lower).
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Credit Risk/Default Risk
Financial assets measured at amortized cost are subject to the new impairment provisions of IFRS 9 which require
the recognition of impairment provisions based on expected credit losses rather than only incurred credit losses
as was the case under IAS 39. According to the impairment model in IFRS 9
According to the impairment model in IFRS 9, expected credit losses are required to be measured through a loss
allowance at an amount equal to the 12-month expected credit losses (class 1). If the credit risk of that financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, a loss allowance for full lifetime expected credit
losses is required (class 2). Classification in class 3 occurs upon objective evidence of actual impairment. While
this does not automatically trigger an additional allowance, for financial assets accounted at the “effective interest
rate” the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost carrying amount needs to be applied.
Upon initial application UCP Group has decided to use the simplification rules introduced by IFRS 9.5.5.15 for
trade receivables, which represent to a material extent total financial assets of UCP Group. Accordingly, for such
assets a loss allowance for full lifetime expected credit losses (class 2) is recorded. The assessment of whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk upon initial recognition and upon measurement of expected credit
losses is based on all available information comprising historical data and forward looking information.
The credit risks are managed in multiple stages. Prior to concluding a contract an assessment of the counterparty
is performed in terms of the credit rating and for some categories deliveries are only foreseen under prepayment
basis thus significantly limiting credit risks. Overdue receivable balances are assessed on individual basis and
specific adjustments made if applicable. For the remaining trade and other receivables expected credit losses are
calculated based on company internal historical records of defaults, history, lifetime and external macroeconomic
patterns such as weighted expected trends in inflation and gross domestic product for 2019 using the following
loss allowance table:
0 days overdue
1-30 days overdue
31-60 days overdue
61-90 days overdue
91-120 days overdue
121-150 days overdue
151-180 days overdue
181+ days overdue

Impairment of trade receivables

January 1
Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9
January 1, adjusted
Amounts written-off
Additions/(releases)
Net remeasurement of expected credit losses
Foreign exchange rate differences
Decemer 31

2018

expected credit loss
0,26%
4%
19%
37%
56%
75%
94%
100%

2017

432 844
0

437 537

432 844
-10 272
0
314 919
-78 092
-659 398

437 537
-130 060
158 722
0

0

-33 356
432 844

The risk of default of other primary financial instruments reported under assets can be assessed as being low as
the contracting parties are mainly credit institutions with high credit ratings.
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Impairment losses to assets carried at amortised cost are deducted directly from the asset. For financial instruments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income, the loss allowance is recognized directly in
equity. Impairment losses to trade receivables are reported separately on the income statement (shown under
item 29 of the Notes). Impairment losses to other financial instruments are to be reported, as in the past, under
financial results in accordance with IAS 39. There were no such losses during the 2018 financial year. For assets,
which fall under the application of the expected credit loss rules according to IFRS 9 an earlier recognition of
impairment losses is expected.
The following table shows an analysis of the age structure of trade receivables:

31.12.2018
Trade receivables

5 165 335

31.12.2017
Trade receivables

6 443 152

thereof neither
impaired or thereof not impaired and
overdue
in the following periods
< 2 Months
2 - 6 Months 6 - 12 Months
4 505 937

2 186 007

2 319 930

0

thereof neither
impaired or thereof not impaired and
in the following periods
overdue
< 2 Months
2 - 6 Months 6 - 12 Months
6 010 308

2 815 533

3 194 775

0

due
> 12 Months
0

due
> 12 Months
0

The following table shows an analysis of the age structure of other receivables:

31.12.2018

Long term receivables
Current loan receivables
Other receivables

thereof neither
impaired or thereof not impaired and
overdue
in the following periods
< 2 Months
2 - 6 Months 6 - 12 Months

due
> 12 Months

134 846

134 846

0

0

0

134 846

5 917

5 917

0

0

5 917

0

1 677 983

1 653 210

1 540 076

113 134

0

0

31.12.2017

thereof neither
impaired or thereof not impaired and
overdue
in the following periods
< 2 Months
2 - 6 Months 6 - 12 Months

due
> 12 Months

Long term receivables

10 073

10 073

0

0

0

10 073

Current loan receivables

31 572

31 572

0

0

31 572

0

1 843 960

1 835 456

1 728 519

106 937

0

0

Other receivables
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Interest Rate Risk
The Interest Rate Risk sets out the risk that arises from changes in the value of financial instruments, other
balance sheet items and/or interest-related cash flow due to fluctuations in the market interest rates. Rising
interest in the case of variable-rate financing (see list of financial liabilities) has an immediate impact on the
financial result in the form of higher interest payments.
On the assumption that with all other factors remaining the same the variable rate of interest on December 31,
2018 was 100 basis points higher/lower, earning after taxes would have been EUR 177.230 lower or EUR 177.230
higher (per 31.12.2017: EUR 206.630 lower / EUR 206.630 higher). A deviation by 200 basis points higher/lower
would result in earnings after taxes being EUR 354.460 lower or EUR 354.460 higher (per 31.12.2017: EUR
413.261 lower / EUR 413.261 higher).
Liquidity Risk
The liquidity risk is the risk associated with having the funds required for settling liabilities readily available at all
times. The financing structure of the Group therefore is constantly monitored. Financial debt of UCP Group comprises bank loans with maturities up to three years which are typically revolved. In this respect reference is made
to the presentation of financial liabilities in the Appendix and the statement of cash flows in accordance with IAS
7. The contractual maturities of the financial liabilities at the balance sheet date, including estimated interest
payments, are presented below. These are undiscounted gross amounts including contractual interest payments,
but without showing the effect of offsetting.
Contractual cash flows
31.12.2018
Bank loans - redemption
Bank loans - interest

Average
interest

< 12 Months

8,74%

Fiance lease liabilities - redemption
Trade payables

Interest free

1-2 years

more than 5
years

2-5 years

7 434 932
650 042

5 482 724
479 359

4 278 856
374 104

0
0

72 941

0

0

0

2 917 065

0

0

0

Contractual cash flows
31.12.2017
Bank loans - redemption
Bank loans - interest

Average
interest

< 12 Months

9,76%

Fiance lease liabilities - redemption
Fiance lease liabilities - interest
Trade payables

2,33%
Interest free

44

1-2 years

more than 5
years

2-5 years

7 507 269
732 361

8 419 151
821 319

4 647 958
453 425

0
0

34 257

2 768

0

0

4 279

65

0

0

4 459 622

0

0

0
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Capital risk management
The UCP Group manages its capital with the aim of maximizing shareholder returns by optimizing the equity to
debt ratio. The structure of capital of the UCP Group consists of debt, cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to equity holders of the parent undertaking. The Executive Board monitors the return on capital
regularly by examining the return on equity and return on capital of the subsidiaries and the UCP Group. The
equity ratio of the UCP Group was 63.1% as of December 31, 2018 (December 31, 2017: 60.0%) and the debt
ratio (non-current financial liabilities and short term loans / total assets) as of December 31, 2018 was 23.6%
(December 31, 2017: 24.8%). In 2018 there were no changes in the capital management of the company.
Market Values
The market value of the other primary financial instruments mainly corresponds to the book value because of the
daily or short-term maturities.
The presentation of all the above-mentioned risks is based on the expectations, suppositions and forecasts of
Management and the information currently at its disposal. The statements are not a guarantee of the developments and risks, which essentially depend on numerous factors and uncertainties beyond the company's sphere
of influence and are based on assumptions that may not be accurate.

37. Other Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
Leasing and Rental Agreements
UCP Group has entered into rental and leasing agreements with several contracting parties. These concern both
operating and finance leases. The operating lease agreements essentially comprise the provisioning of office
space at the Vienna and Moscow sites as well as in other Russian cities, the leasing of vehicles at the Vienna site,
the leasing of tank containers, and the leasing of warehousing at several Russian sites. Finance lease agreements
comprise the leasing of vehicles in Russia.
Minimum lease payments from existing lease agreements are as follows:
Operating leasing

not later than one year
later than one year and not later than five years

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

523 500
1 856 307
2 379 807

591 876
2 098 763
2 690 639

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

72 941
0
72 941

38 535
2 768
41 304

Finance leasing

not later than one year
later than one year and not later than five years
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Since mainly indefinite rental and leasing agreements are concerned, "Minimum payments longer than five years"
remain unstated. For country specific reasons leases in Russia are typically concluded for a term below twelve
months. A separate presentation of assets and liabilities under finance leasing was not performed for materiality
reasons.
Commitments and Contingencies
The Group has assumed no guarantees or other commitments towards third parties; accordingly, no contingent
liabilities are posted.
Significant Investment Projects
Ural Methanol Group: the company plans to construct a plant for methanol production; the estimated total investment is approximately EUR 475 million. Further reference is made to the respective information in the Consolidated Management Report.

38. Number of Employees
The number of employees in UCP Group (fully consolidated entities) on December 31, 2018 and on December
31, 2017 was
31.12.2018
283
295
370
83
1031

Administration
Production
Service/support
Social sphere

31.12.2017
284
302
378
90
1 054

Average labor costs per employee in Russia amounted to RUB 49.291 per month, equivalent to around EUR 665
(2017: RUB 44.142 per month, equivalent to around EUR 670). The total number of employees at non-fully
consolidated associated Group companies was as of 31.12.2018 114 (31.12.2017: 104).

39. Related Party Transactions
Relations to related companies or persons which have to be reported under this item do not exist besides those
presented in the points 10, 11, 13, 21, 24 and 32 of the Notes.

40. Executive Board and Supervisory Board of UCP Chemicals AG
In period under review the Executive Board comprised the following individuals:
• Norbert Wieser, independent representation since January 1, 2011
• Alexander E. Gerdt, representation since September 10, 2007 in conjunction with one other member of
the Board of Directors
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Management personnel compensation at the level of all fully consolidated companies of UCP Group amounted to:

31.12.2018
Fixed part of remuneration
Variable part of remuneration
Contributions to pension funds

31.12.2017

712
150
39

743
106
31

901

880

In period under review the Supervisory Board comprised the following individuals:
• Thomas Bogdanowicz, Chairman
• Egmont Fröhlich
• Fritz Schweiger
• Helmut Struger
Remunerations to Members of the Supervisory Board in 2018 amounted to EUR 68.750 (2017: EUR 48.000).

41. Material Events Occurring after the Balance Sheet Date
No material events occurred after the Balance Sheet Date.

42. Additional Disclosures According to Section 245 (a) of the UGB
Fundamental Differences between the Accounting Principles of the UGB and IFRSs
The Austrian accounting principles and those of the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) are subject to different basic principles. While the UGB places the principle of conservatism and protection of creditors in
the foreground, the primary goal of accounting under IFRSs is the provision of appropriate decision-making information for shareholders. For this reason, higher value is placed on comparability of annual financial statements
according to IFRSs than to UGB.
Other Provisions
In contrast to the Austrian UGB, IFRSs interpret the principle of caution differently with respect to provisions.
IFRSs tend to place stricter requirements on the probability of an event occurring and on estimating the amount
of the provision.
Foreign Currency Translation
According to IFRSs the exchange rate in effect on the balance sheet date is used to translate foreign exchange
liabilities; the historical exchange rate in effect on the date of the initial transaction is disregarded. In contrast to
Austrian accounting practice, IFRSs therefore recognize both unrealized gains and unrealized losses.
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Vienna, April 15, 2019

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Norbert Wieser
Alexander E. Gerdt
Member of the Management Board, CEO
Member of the Management Board, COO
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31.12.2018
Sberbank
Sberbank
Sberbank
Sberbank
Sberbank
Sberbank
Sberbank
Primsocbank
Primsocbank
UniCredit Bank
UniCredit Bank
UniCredit Bank
UniCredit Bank
UniCredit Bank
UniCredit Bank
Rosbank
Rosbank
Rosbank
Accrued interest
TOTAL

Amounts in EUR

Creditor

204 385 000
340 000 000
50 000 000
50 000 000
60 000 000
84 394 403
36 460 000
150 000 000
50 000 000
35 000 000
35 000 000
42 000 000
17 000 000
41 000 000
10 000 000
13 400 000
21 300 000
124 500 000
2 004 020
1 366 443 424

Nominal value
in contract
currency
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB

Contract
currency

9,30
8,89
8,10
8,10
8,15
7,50
9,00
9,25
9,25
8,60
8,55
8,50
8,45
8,40
9,50
8,90
8,60
8,60

Interest
rate
%

16.08.2019
16.12.2022
07.08.2019
12.08.2019
19.02.2020
13.04.2019
13.12.2020
16.08.2019
13.06.2019
10.10.2020
10.10.2020
10.10.2020
10.10.2020
10.10.2020
10.10.2020
19.03.2020
19.03.2020
26.06.2020
31.01.2019 -

Maturity
date
contract
2 572 158
4 278 856
629 243
629 243
755 092
1 062 093
458 844
1 887 730
629 243
440 470
440 470
528 565
213 943
515 980
125 849
168 637
268 058
1 566 816
25 220
17 196 512

in EUR

Book value

2 572 158
0
629 243
629 243
0
1 062 093
0
1 887 730
629 243
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
25 220
7 434 932

remaining
< 1 Year
0
0
0
0
755 092
0
458 844
0
0
440 470
440 470
528 565
213 943
515 980
125 849
168 637
268 058
1 566 816
0
5 482 724

0
4 278 856
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
4 278 856

maturity thereof
remaining
remaining
> 1 < 2 Years > 2 < 5 Years

Reconciliation of financial liabilities as of December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017
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0
4 278 856
0
0
755 092
0
458 844
0
0
440 470
440 470
528 565
213 943
515 980
125 849
168 637
268 058
1 566 816
0
9 761 580

Total
> 1 Year
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31.12.2017
Sberbank
Sberbank
Sberbank
Sberbank
Primsocbank
Primsocbank
AKB Svyaz-Bank
Sberbank
UniCredit Bank
UniCredit Bank
UniCredit Bank
UniCredit Bank
UniCredit Bank
UniCredit Bank
Alfabank
Accrued interest
TOTAL

Amounts in EUR

Creditor

300 000 000
79 800 000
200 000 000
108 690 000
150 000 000
50 000 000
238 348 000
76 502 022
12 000 000
20 000 000
40 000 000
58 000 000
35 000 000
35 000 000
11 400 000
2 151 579
1 416 891 601

Nominal value
in contract
currency
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB
RUB

Contract
currency

16.08.2019
26.12.2019
23.10.2018
16.12.2022
16.08.2019
13.06.2019
21.12.2018
25.05.2018
10.10.2020
10.10.2020
10.10.2020
10.10.2020
10.10.2020
10.10.2020
01.06.2020
31.01.2018

Maturity
date
contract
4 356 236
1 158 759
2 904 157
1 578 264
2 178 118
726 039
3 461 000
1 110 869
174 249
290 416
580 831
842 206
508 227
508 227
165 537
31 243
20 574 378

in EUR

%
10,00
10,00
9,75
9,10
9,75
10,00
10,25
8,75
9,60
9,55
9,50
9,45
9,40
9,35
10,50
-

Book value

Interest ra

0
0
2 904 157
0
0
0
3 461 000
1 110 869
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
31 243
7 507 269

remaining
< 1 Year
4 356 236
1 158 759
0
0
2 178 118
726 039
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
8 419 151

0
0
0
1 578 264
0
0
0
0
174 249
290 416
580 831
842 206
508 227
508 227
165 537
0
4 647 958

maturity thereof
remaining
remaining
> 1 < 2 Years > 2 < 5 Years

Reconciliation of financial liabilities as of December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017
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4 356 236
1 158 759
0
1 578 264
2 178 118
726 039
0
0
174 249
290 416
580 831
842 206
508 227
508 227
165 537
0
13 067 109

Total
> 1 Year
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CONSOLIDATED MANAGEMENT REPORT
of

UCP Chemicals AG (UCP Group)
for the

Business Year 2018
1) Report on the development of business and financial position
1.1 Development of business and financial position
In 2018 the macroeconomic environment in Russia has slightly improved expressed by growth in GDP of 2,3%1
while the development is still hampered by structural inefficiencies, the impact of global political tensions and
the apprehension of a wider scope of international sanctions. The financial market responded charily leading
to a devaluation of the Russian Ruble by 12.5% for the average EUR/RUB rate for 2018 versus 2017. Also the
Central Bank shifted direction and raised the key rate for the first time since 2014. In this environment, it has
paid off that UCP Group had focused on a locally produced product range at global quality standards in
combination with a package of complementary products and locally available customer service. This became
for example evident in the segment of insulation and wood resins where revenues increased in 2018 by 34,9%
and 31,6%, respectively, compared to the previous year. However, prices for some specific raw materials,
which are especially important for the foundry and road chemicals segment, increased materially in 2018 due
to global shortages, in addition by factors affecting the balance of prices of some co-products and exaggerated
for imported raw materials following the devaluation of the Russian Ruble. As a result, some customers
switched to 2nd and 3rd tier producers to reduce costs while compromising on quality which was to the detriment
of the two Group companies operating in the foundry and road chemicals segment who are leaders in their
markets but with a focus on the high quality and premium segments. Both Group companies have responded
by launching economy price product lines and adjusting their portfolio and could already lift margins in Q4
2018 with this positive trend continuing in Q1 2019, especially in respect of the economy price products.
In 2018 UCP Group again improved its financial performance as illustrated by profitable growth with a
continued focus on innovation and quality. Sales increased in 2018 by 8,6% to EUR 74,9 million from EUR
69,0 million in the prior year. This trend becomes evident with an even higher magnitude if denominated in
Ruble due to the average appreciation of the Euro against the Ruble by 12,5% between 2018 and 2017.
The net profit of the Group in 2018 improved to EUR 3,7 million from EUR 3,4 million in the previous year.
Consolidated equity amounts to EUR 46,1 million as of December 31, 2018. The decrease of 7,5% compared
to the amount of consolidated equity as of December 31, 2017 of EUR 49,8 million is mainly due to currency
effects while the equity ratio increased to 63,1% as of December 31, 2018 from 60,0% as of December 31,
2017.
Notable is the reduction of the borrowing ratio to 23,6% from 24,8% in the previous year (see 1.3. below) in
line with the strategy to gradually reduce the level of debt. As a result also the debt-to-EBITDA-ratio improved
to 2,0 as of December 31, 2018 compared to 2,3 as of December 31, 2017. Besides, the net financial result
of UCP Group also benefitted from a reduction by 2,7% in the weighted interest rate on bank debt in 2018
compared to 2017 following a gradual relief of the key rate of the Russian Central Bank.
During the reporting period investments in the amount of EUR 1,9 million were made in fixed assets (2017:
EUR 1,3 million). A notable investment, which commenced in 2017 but is not included in this number as it
concerns an at equity consolidated company, is the construction of a new foundry resins plant by the joint
venture OOO Uralchimplast - Hüttenes Albertus. At the remaining Group companies investments mainly relate
to quality and efficiency improvements in production and infrastructure, such as continued increase of
production capacity of OOO Uralchimplast-Amdor, as well as in view of health, safety and environmental
upgrades.
1

RF Ministry of Economic Development

51
51

1.2) Report about at-equity consolidated companies and subsidiaries
The numbers from at-equity consolidated companies and subsidiaries, which are listed below, relate to the
individual financial statements, which are compiled according to the local accounting principles and have been
transformed under IFRS, respectively, in the case of PAO Uralchimplast the subconsolidated financial
statements comprising OOO Centre of Preventive Medicine (at 100%) and OAO BTP Chempark Tagil (at 50%).
The currency translation procedure is set out in the Notes under Item 6: Currency Translation.
PAO Uralchimplast
PAO Uralchimplast owns the main production facilities and infrastructure of UCP Group in Nizhny Tagil. PAO
Uralchimplast focuses on its own core product groups for the wood, construction and manufacturing industry
as well as production for the joint venture companies of UCP Group and providing services to residents of
Chempark Tagil via AO Management Company Chimpark Tagil. At PAO Uralchimplast the financial performance
in 2018 was characterized by profitable growth in the core segments illustrated by an increase in revenue of
insulation and wood resins in 2018 by 34,9% and 31,6%, respectively, compared to 2017. On the other hand,
PAO Uralchimplast could also build on its efforts to enhance efficiency and improve business processes (e.g.
long term planning of resources) and was as such able to absorb higher market shares via opportunistic sales
of urea wood resins, in an environment of high raw material costs and scarcity of some key raw materials.
Thus, total sales volumes of PAO Uralchimplast increased in 2018 compared to 2017 by 18,7% to 105 thousand
tons (2017: 88 thousand tons). Value sales increased by 10,1% to EUR 73,4 million (2017: EUR 66,7 million)
while PAO Uralchimplast achieved at subconsolidated level including OOO Centre of Preventive Medicine (at
100%) and OAO BTP Chempark Tagil (at 50%) a net profit of EUR 2,3 million in 2018 after EUR 1,0 million in
2017. The balance sheet amounts in total to EUR 59,1 million (2017: EUR 68,9 million). The equity ratio is
53,7% (2017: 50,9%). PAO Uralchimplast is consolidated, as previously, by 100% in the financial statements.
OOO Uralchimplast - Hüttenes Albertus
The 50/50 joint venture with Hüttenes-Albertus Chemische Werke GmbH is based in Nizhny Tagil, and offers
the full range of products for the foundry industry comprising foundry resins, coatings, sleeves and other
complementary products for the foundry industry. Overall sales volumes of the company increased in 2018
compared to 2017 by 7,7% to 20 thousand tons. An important factor in this respect was the foundry coatings
segment where volumes from the foundry coatings plant opened in 2016 increased in 2018 by 40,7%
compared to 2017. A key feature in the foundry segment in 2018 was the hike in prices of some segment
specific raw materials compared to 2017. With UCP-HA being a market leader in Russia in terms of market
share, quality and technology it was specifically affected as some customers started turning to 2nd and 3rd tier
competitors looking for lower prices though compromising on quality. In response, UCP-HA has modified its
product portfolio and thus again lifted profitability margins in Q4 2018.
In 2018 sales increased by 5,6% to EUR 30,1 million from EUR 28,5 million in 2017 with an annual net profit
after taxes of EUR 3,5 million (2017: EUR 3,9 million). The company is consolidated in the financial statements
using, as previously, the equity method. The share of net profit contributed at consolidated level by OOO
Uralchimplast - Hüttenes Albertus amounted to EUR 1,8 million (2017: EUR 1,9 million). OOO Uralchimplast Hüttenes Albertus had 41 employees as of 31. December 2018.
OOO Uralchimplast-Amdor
This company is a 50/50 joint venture between the Russian ZAO Amdor and UCP Chemicals AG and produces
in Nizhniy Tagil inhibitors for the oil and gas industry as well as chemical additives for road construction both
for domestic and export markets. In view of rising raw material prices and as some raw materials are only
produced outside Russia and need to be imported and thus further increasing their price in view of the
devaluation of the Ruble, some customers started to try cheaper alternative solutions of much lower quality.
This trend was further facilitated by a loophole opened in new tender procedures for public road construction,
which allowed the use of low quality materials. In response, UCP-Amdor launched a low price product line and
thus significantly reduced production cost which already improved profitability margins in Q4 2018.
Total sales increased in 2018 in volume terms by 3,8% to 5,2 thousand tons and in monetary terms they
amounted to EUR 11,6 million (2017: EUR 12,4 million) with an annual net profit after taxes of EUR 0,6 million
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compared to EUR 0,9 million in 2017. The company is consolidated in the financial statements using, as
previously, the equity method. The share of net profit contributed at consolidated level by OOO UralchimplastAmdor amounted to EUR 0,3 million (2017: EUR 0,4 million). OOO Uralchimplast - Amdor had 56 employees
as of 31. December 2018.
ZAO Ural Methanol Group (UMG)
ZAO Ural Methanol Group is a 50/50 joint venture with the Russian ARETI Group and is planning a methanol
production plant in Nizhniy Tagil. An EPC contract has been signed with an international engineering company
which would arrange also financing of the project. At the same time, discussions with an international fund in
relation to equity participation and with a bank consortium in relation to a bank guaranty are in an advanced
stage. To complete the transaction and start construction, a shareholder agreement needs to be concluded
subsequently among the equity-investors and the financing package would require final approval (see section
2.1. below). The plant’s designed capacity is 600,000 tons p.a. and as of today all required licenses and
approvals to start construction have been received and preparation work has been performed on the
construction site.
ZAO Ural Methanol Group did not make any sales during the year under review. The company is consolidated
in the financial statements using, as previously, the equity method and contributed at consolidated level a net
loss of EUR -0,1 million (2017: EUR -0,4 million). ZAO Ural Methanol Group had 10 employees as of 31.
December 2018.
AO Management Company Chimpark Tagil
AO Management Company Chimpark Tagil is a wholly owned subsidiary of UCP Chemicals AG. AO Management
Company Chimpark Tagil acts as a service company within and outside the Group operating the “Chempark
TagilTM”, an officially certified industrial park at the production site of PAO Uralchimplast in Nizhniy Tagil. Apart
from residents from UCP Group there are also external residents in the “Chempark TagilTM”.
AO Management Company Chimpark Tagil is consolidated, as previously, by 100% in the financial statements.
AO Management Company Chimpark Tagil had an annual net profit after taxes of EUR 0,1 million (2017: EUR
0,0 million) and 29 employees as of 31. December 2018.
Other companies within the scope of consolidation of UCP Group are:
OOO Centre of Preventive Medicine is a company fully owned by PAO Uralchimplast with sales in 2018 of EUR
0,6 million (2017: EUR 0,6 million) and a headcount of 71 as of 31 December 2018 providing preventive and
mandatory occupational medical examinations to employees of UCP Group and third parties. OAO BTP
Chempark Tagil is a 50/50 joint venture between PAO Uralchimplast and the Municipality of Nizhny Tagil in
the area of water purification with sales of EUR 0,4 million (2017: EUR 0,4 million) and a headcount of 7 as of
31 December 2018.
1.3) Financial and non-financial performance indicators
2018
2017
Fixed assets/total assets
54,6 % 55,9 %
Equity/total assets
63,1 % 60,0 %
EBIT/assets net of current liabilities
10,5 %
9,6 %
Cash and equivalents/current liabilities
9,0 %
4,7 %
Financial
liabilities
net
cash
and
cash
2,0
2,3
equivalents/EBITDA
Borrowing ratio
Non-current financial liabilities and short term loans/
23,6 % 24,8 %
total assets
2018
2017
Net operating cash flow
EUR 6,1 million
EUR 7,2 million
Net cash flow from investment activities
EUR -1,3 million EUR -1,0 million
Intensity of assets
Equity ratio
Return on capital employed
Cash Asset Ratio
Debt-to-EBITDA-ratio
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Net cash flow from financing activities
Currency translation
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
Number of employees

EUR -4,5 million
EUR 0,2 million
EUR 1,1 million
1.031

EUR -5,9 million
EUR -0,3 million
EUR 0,7 million
1.054

Sales per employee in the fiscal year 2018 amount to EUR 73 thousand (2017: EUR 65 thousand). Labor costs
per employee were at EUR 8,8 thousand per year (2017: EUR 8,8 thousand). The remuneration policy
comprises an incentive and bonus system for executives as well as for employees from the production and
support/maintenance departments. Variable components usually base on specific financial targets with
individual targets agreed in accordance with responsibilities and respective areas of work. Besides, employees
of UCP Group have access to UCP Group´s recreational and healthcare facilities. Employees participate on a
regular basis in relevant training and learning programs with a focus on industrial and chemical subjects as
well as health and safety topics. Such trainings are held partly together with the joint venture partners of UCP
Group.
UCP Group´s largest customer accounted for 10,0% of sales (2017: 9,0%). The 20 largest customers
accounted for 51,0% of sales (2017: 50,2%).
Reducing the impact on the environment and compliance with respective regulations has highest priority for
UCP Group. Liquid emissions first undergo a recycling process to regain raw materials for production and are
then cleaned in UCP Group´s state of the art water purification plant. Air emissions are filtered according to
requirements and solid waste is deposited subsequent to a recycling process on a certified and protected
landfill.

2) Economic outlook and major risks for the company
2.1 Economic outlook
The macroeconomic environment in Russia is slowly improving and GDP is expected to grow in 2019 at 1,3%
after 2,3%2 in 2018 which was lifted in this year by major state infrastructure investments. Also other macroindicators such as inflation (CPI expected at ca 5,0% for 2019 after 4,3% over 20182 in view of an increase
of the VAT rate from 18% to 20% effective from 1.1.2019) and industrial output are expected to further
consolidate. However, the Russian economic growth continues to be restraint by a weak and volatile currency,
the dependency on oil prices and international sanctions. The Ruble exchange rate responds in its volatility to
the oil price and the threat of new sanctions as further U.S. sanctions against Russia are pending. In February
2019 Moody’s raised Russia’s rating to investment grade Baa3 from Ba13 but changed its outlook to stable
from positive citing ongoing pressures from external factors such as oil prices and sanctions. After a row of
cuts since 2015 the Central Bank has for the first time increased the key rate in September 2018 by 0.25% to
7.5% and then again in December 2018 to 7.75%4 while no further significant changes are expected for 2019.
UCP Group´s strategy remains to focus on its profitable core segments and line extensions into related fields
in combination with innovation and upgrading of the product portfolio. Among the positive factors are the
strong position in the market as local producer of state of the art products combined with a professional
customer service accompanied by a solid financial strategy to make the business more resilient to potential
crisis scenarios.
Following the above direction, the respective Group companies will act based on their specific strengths:
PAO Uralchimplast which is owning and operating the main production and infrastructure facilities of UCP
Group in Nizhny Tagil will continue focusing on upgrading the core product portfolio by increasing the added
customer value of its products in the area of high performance insulation, phenolic wood and industrial
resins. Besides, PAO Uralchimplast continues to realize profitable growth opportunities via line extensions
especially in the area of resins for the oil, gas & mining industries and environmentally friendly resins. Being
the Group company with the highest production asset base and number of employees, ongoing efficiency
and cost reduction programs maintain their high importance with a focus on efficient capacity utilization
2
3
4

RF Ministry of Economic Development
Moody´s
CB RF
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supported by an effective customer management process. It is intended to further increase the share of
local production across UCP Group also in near future which will also be to the benefit of PAO Uralchimplast
to the extent it produces for the joint ventures within UCP Group. Planned investments at PAO Uralchimplast
aim to expand capacity in profitable growth areas, enhance efficiency and improve infrastructure and the
safety of health, life and environment.
OOO Uralchimplast - Hüttenes Albertus is a joint venture in the segment of products for the foundry industry.
It will continue its successful business model of combining the technical leadership from Hüttenes Albertus,
the leading global manufacturer of chemical products for the foundry industry, with a sustainably increasing
share of local production in Russia. After the start of a new factory for refractory coatings in 2016 work on the
second stage of localization of production has commenced comprising the construction of a new factory for
foundry resins. Besides, OOO Uralchimplast - Hüttenes Albertus will further strengthen its position in the
foundry market and broaden the product offering in respect of innovative solutions for use in all established
coremaking and mouldmaking processes.
The joint venture OOO Uralchimplast-Amdor will further increase its competitiveness and strong position in
the domestic road construction market based on locally produced high quality products and a sustained
innovation pipeline as well as expanding its presence on export markets. A growing export share will make
the company more resilient to local changes in demand. In addition, corrosion inhibitors and other special
solutions for the oil & gas industry are increasingly complementing the business of OOO Uralchimplast-Amdor.
Consequently, investments to increase capacity are continuing and are planned to be completed in 2020.
AO Management Company Chimpark Tagil offers within and outside UCP Group fully fledged services for an
industrial park including outsourcing services, utility connection and wastewater treatment in a state of the art
four steps biological wastewater treatment plant of OAO BTP Chimpark Tagil, which also serves the needs of
the neighboring industry and municipality. Consequently, the performance of AO Management Company
Chimpark Tagil primarily depends on the development of the businesses of UCP Group companies and other
residents at the “Chempark TagilTM”. Besides, AO Management Company Chimpark Tagil is actively promoting
the “Chempark TagilTM” in Russia and abroad to attract further residents to “Chempark TagilTM and thus to
share infrastructure overhead costs and to gradually develop this business segment.
ZAO Ural Methanol Group, which develops the 600,000 tons p.a. methanol production project has all licenses
and technical documentations in place to start construction. Currently the company is in advanced discussions
regarding a comprehensive project partnership involving construction and financing. A recent update of the
business plan and investment requirements has confirmed the project´s feasibility also in today´s
macroeconomic environment based on a sustainable growth forecast in the international methanol market due
to wider applications of methanol, such as in the methanol to olephine process. Localized methanol production
will also make the Chempark TagilTM more attractive to new residents. The key steps towards a realization of
the project concern the conclusion of the respective contractual arrangements regarding the financing of the
construction of the plant.
2.2 Major risks and uncertainties
Risks relevant for UCP-Group concern inherent product risks and operative risks resulting from the business
activities, especially risks in relation to market, price volatility, costs and various finance risks. Those specifically
comprise liquidity risks and risks in relation to the creditworthiness and solvency of counterparties, which could
affect the cash-flow of UCP Group. The risk of default represents the risk of failure of performance of
contractual obligations by a counterparty, which can result in a loss. Default risks are subject to continuous
monitoring and for actual and recognizable risks reserves and allowances are provided. The liquidity risk
represents the risk of the ability to perform at any and in due time under incurred obligations with the requisite
financial funds. Treasury of UCP Group furnishes a long term financial planning and is subject to continuous
monitoring.
Risks and uncertainties concern the overall environment in Russia following the international political tensions
and sanctions. Financial markets in Russia remain highly sensitive to trends on international level as well as
to movements of the oil price resulting in a volatility of the exchange rate of the Russian Ruble and capital
drain. New sanctions from the United States are pending while there are little signs, which would indicate a
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release of the international sanctions already in force from other countries. The lock-out of Russia from
Western capital markets contributes to a still high level of financing cost compared to the European Union.
However, the performance in the recent years has proven that UCP Group was able to cope with the challenges
of a volatile environment and even to capitalize on opportunities such as import substitution via increased
localization of production at a competitive level. Sanctions imposed by foreign governments and the European
Union against Russia have not directly affected the business of UCP Group. The main challenges for UCP Group
remain in the area of counterparty risks, volatility in demand in relevant customer industries and risk premiums
in the financial markets. The movements in the Ruble exchange rate are reflecting the development of the
international oil price and capital market sentiments. In view of the existing currency mix, especially within
financial instruments, this results in a latent currency risk. However, as most of UCP Group´s sourcing and
trading is performed in a Ruble environment there is a limited risk exposure in relation to material commitments
denominated in foreign currency.
The interest risk is moderate as the Central Bank of the Russian Federation has so far demonstrated a diligent
policy and no material changes are expected for 2019. There is also certain further relief expected on the cost
of financing of UCP Group´s loan portfolio in Russia both from a reduction in interest rates as well as from the
contraction of the level of debt. A sensitivity analysis investigating into the effects of currency and interest
rate fluctuations is included in the Notes.
From today´s point of view, it is not possible to estimate the impact on UCP Group from the current
macroeconomic trends and geopolitical developments comprehensively; however, Management has prepared
a set of specific countermeasures in response, which have already proved to be effective in the previous years.
The forward-looking statements contained in this report are based on the present expectations, suppositions
and forecasts of Management and the information currently at its disposal. The forward-looking statements
are not a guarantee of the future developments and results, which essentially depend on numerous factors,
uncertainties and risks and are based on assumptions that may need to be reviewed and revised to reflect
such changes in trading patterns, cost structures or the direction of the business as emerge.

3) Financial instruments
During the reporting period UCP Group has only employed primary financial instruments and no derivative
financial instruments have been used apart from the option referred to in point 15 of the Notes.

4) Report on research and development activities
To be prepared for the future and to support our customers it is important for UCP Group to follow the latest
trends in the markets. But highly important, too, is to be prepared for the latest developments in the
international and local regulations for environment and safety. A pillar for being always up to date in
international regulations is our active membership in EPRA (European Phenolic Resin Association) and in GPRA
(Global Phenolic Resin Association).
A close teamwork between innovation teams and production staff enables us to save more and more energy
and raw materials by avoiding waste and pollution. This means e.g. to maximize permanently the recycling
rate of our side-products.
To strengthen our core business we are extending permanently the scope of application of existing product
lines while we are also using our core competence to develop new products that are needed in different local
and international market segments. For us it is important to include local and international partners in this
process in cooperation with our own experienced professional innovation teams.
In all of our developments, we follow world-class standards and we are proud that the ideas and solutions
developed by our people contribute significantly to the profit of our company.
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Vienna, April 15, 2019

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Norbert Wieser
Alexander E. Gerdt
Member of the Management Board, CEO
Member of the Management Board, COO
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Audit Report on the
Consolidated Financial Statements

UCP Chemicals AG

This auditor’s report represents a translation of the audit report issued in German, dated April
15, 2019. This audit opinion is only applicable to the German and complete financial statements
with the management report

Auditor’s Report
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
Audit Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
UCP Chemicals AG,
Vienna,
and of its subsidiaries (the Group) comprising the consolidated balance sheet as of 31.12.2018, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the fiscal year then ended and the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.
Based on our audit the accompanying consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance
with the legal regulations and present fairly, in all material respects, the assets and the financial position
of the Group as of 31.12.2018 and its financial performance for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU, and additional requirements
according to § 245a UGB.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Austrian Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Our responsibilities under those
regulations and standards are further described in the "Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements" section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Austrian General Accepted Accounting Principles and professional requirements and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Responsibilities of Management and of the Supervisory Board for the Consolidated Financial
Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU, and additional
requirements according to § 245a UGB, for them to present a true and fair view of the assets, the
financial position and the financial performance of the Group and for such internal controls as
management determines are necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Supervisory Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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UCP Chemicals AG

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Austrian Standards on Auditing will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with Austrian Standards on Auditing, which require the application of
ISA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:
•

•

•
•

•

•

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Supervisory Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
We also provide the Supervisory Board with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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Report on the Management Report for the Group
Pursuant to Austrian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, the Group management report is to be
audited as to whether it is consistent with the consolidated financial statements and as to whether it was
prepared in accordance with the applicable legal regulations.
Management is responsible for the preparation of the Group's management report in accordance with
Austrian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Austrian Standards on Auditing for the audit of the Group's
management report.
Opinion
In our opinion, the management report for the group was prepared in accordance with the valid legal
requirements and is consistent with the consolidated financial statements.
Statement
Based on the findings during the audit of the consolidated financial statements and due to the thus
obtained understanding concerning the Group and its circumstances no material misstatements in the
Group's management report came to our attention.
Vienna, April 15th 2019

RSM Austria Wirtschaftsprüfung GmbH

Mag. (FH) Michael Heck
Auditor
Publication or sharing with third parties of the group financial statements together with our auditor's
opinion is only allowed if the financial statements and the management report are identical with the
audited version.. This audit opinion is only applicable to the German and complete financial statements
with the management report. Section 281 paragraph 2 UGB (Austrian Company Code) applies to
alternated versions.
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Financial Calendar

Upcoming Events
for 2019

Date

Event

6.05.2019

Publication of financial results 2018

28.05.2019

Regular general shareholders meeting

28.05.2019

Letter to shareholders interim results Q1 2019

30.08.2019

Letter to shareholders interim results Q2 2019

15.11.2019

Letter to shareholders interim results Q3 2019

In order to guarantee transparency, service and relevance all important information and news for shareholders and other interested parties are published in the internet under www.ucpchemicals.com.
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UCP Chemicals AG
Stubenring 18 / Top 5
1010 Vienna, Austria
Tel: +43/1/890 55 72
weihsbeck@ucpchemicals.com
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